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CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

This report contains some forwaid-looking statements about the Company, Including 1is business operations, strategy and expecied finantial performance and condiuon
Forward-looking statements inciude statements that are predictive in nature, depend upon or refer to future events or conditions, or include words such as “expects*, “anticipates”,
"intends”, “plans”, "believes”, "estimates” and similar expressions ar negative versions thereaf tn addition, any statement that may be made concerning future fmancial performance
{including revenues, earnings or growth rates), ongoing business strategies or prospects, and possible future action by the Company, indluding statements made by the Company with
respect to the expected benefits of acquisitions or divestitures, are also forward-laoking statements Forward-looking statements are based on cuirent expectations and projections
about future events and are itherently subject to, among cther things, nsks, uncertaities and assumptions about the Company, economic factors and the financial services Industry
generatly, including the insurance and mutual fund industries They are nat guaraniees of future performance, and actual events and results could differ matenially from those expressed
or implted by forward-looking statements made by the Company due to, but not limited to, important factors such as sales levels, premwum income, fee income, expense levels, mortal ity
experience, mortidity experience, policy lapse rates, taxes, general economic, political and market factors in North Amenca and internationally, interest and foreign exchange rates,
global equity and cap:al markets, business competition, technological change, changes i government regutations, changes In accounting policies and the effect of applying future
accounting policy changes including future policy changes required under International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), unexpected judicial or regulatory proceedings,
catastrophic events, and the Company's ability to complete strategic transactions and integrate acquisitrons The reader 15 cautioned that the foregoing list of important factors Is not
exhaustive, and there may be other factors, inctuding factors set out under “Risk Management and Control Practices” and “Summary of Cnitecal Accounting Estimates™ in the
Company's 2011 Annual Management’s Discussion and Analysis, and any histed in other filings with securities regulators, which are availabie for review at www sedar com The reader
15 also cautioned to consider these and other factors carefully and not to place undue rehance on forward looking statements Other than as specfically required by applicable law,
the Company does not intend to update any forward-looking statements whether as a result of new information, future events ar atherwise

CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING NON-IFRS FINANCIAL MEASURES
This repart contans some non-IFRS financial measures Terms by which non-IFRS financial measures are identified include, but are not hmited to, *operating earnings”, *constant
currency basis”, “premiums and deposits®, “sales”, and other similar expressions Non-IFRS financial measures are used 1o provide management and investors with additional

measures of performance However, non-IFRS financial measures do not have standard meanings prescribed by IFRS and are not directly comparable to similar measures used by other
companies Please refer to the appropnate reconciliations of these non-IFRS financial measures to measures prescnbed by IFRS

BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consalidated financal statements of the Company, which are the basis for data presented in this report, have been prepared in accordance wath [FRS and are presented in millions
of Canadian dollars unless otherwise indicated
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CORPORATE PROFILE

Great-West Life 1s a leading Canadian insurer, with interests in life insurance, health insurance, investment, savings and retirement
income and rensurance businesses, pnmarily in Canada and Europe

In Canada, Great-West Life and its subsidianes, London Life and Canada Ufe, offer a broad portfolio of financial and benefit plan
solutions and serve the financial security needs of more than 12 million people

Great-West Life’s products include a wide range of investment, savings and retirement income plans, payout annuities, as well as life,
disability, critical iliness and health insurance for individuals and families These products and services are drstributed through a
dwverse network of financial secunty advisors and brokers assocrated with Great-West Life, finanaial security advisors associated with
London Life’s Freedom 55 Financial™ division and the Wealth & Estate Planning Group, and the distnbution channels Canada Life
supports, including Independent adwisors associated with managing general agencies, as well as national accounts including
Investors Group

For large and small businesses and organizations, Great-West Life offers a variety of group benefit plan solutions featuring options
such as life, healthcare, dentalcare, critical illness, disability and wellness, international benefits plans, plus convenient online services
The Company also offers group retirement and savings plans that are tailored to the unique needs of businesses and organizations
These products and services are distributed through financial security advisors associated with our companies, as well as independent
adwisors, brokers and consultants

In Europe, Great-West Life has operations In the United Kingdom, Isle of Man, ireland and Germany through Canada Life Canada
Life provides individuals and their families with a broad range of insurance and wealth management products These include payout
annuities, Investments and group insurance i the United Kingdom, savings and indmidual insurance in the Isle of Man, individual
insurance and savings, and pension products in Ireland, and fund-based pensions, cntical iliness and disability insurance in Germany

Great-West Life participates in international remnsurance markets through Canada Life Reinsurance and London Reinsurance Group,
providing life, annuity and property and casualty reinsurance (n the United States and in international markets

Great-West Life has $204 billion* in consolidated assets under administration and Is a subsidiary of Great-West Lifeco Inc , a member
of the Power Financial Corporation group of companies

For more information on Great-West Life, including current ratings, visit www greatwestlife com

*as of December 31 2011
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

In 2011 Great-West Life and 1ts subsidiaries in Canada and
Eurcpe continued to dehver strong performance Our
conservative investment practices and disciplined approach
to ntroducing new products and managing expenses
have served us well over the long term and position us well for
organic growth

Performance measures

Measures of Great-West Life’s performance 1n 2011 include
¢ Premums and deposits remained strong, at $28 3 billion

* In Canada, mutual fund net deposits to the Quadrus Group
of Funds™ at 5 2% of opening assets outpaced the mutual fund
ndustry, which had 1 9% net sales

* Common shareholder operating earnings of $1 8 billion, a
non-1FRS financial measure, were 11 6% higher than in 2010

» (eneral account assets were $114 7 bilhon, an increase of 6%
over 2010

+ Segregated fund net assets increased 1% from December 31,
2010

» Policyholder dividends were $11 billion compared to
$1 0 billion the prior year

+ Net earnings n the participating accounts after policyholder
dividends was $117 muillion

The Company’s capital pesition remains very strong Great-West
Life reported a Mimimum Contnuing Capital and Surplus
Requirements (MCCSR) ratio of 204% at December 31, 2011,
compared to 203% at December 31, 2010 This measure of capital
strength remains at the upper end of our target operating range
It does not include any benefit from the approximately $0 6
billion of net proceeds from capital transactions held by 1ts
parent, Great-West Lifeco

We have a high quality bond portfolio, with 99% rated
mvestment grade at December 31, 2011

Canada - products and distribution

In Canada, Great-West Life, together with London Life and
Canada Life, maintained leading market positions n our
individual and group businesses Our continued focus on
prudent product and service enhancements, diversified
distribution and operating efficiencies continue to position us for
solid organic growth

We continued to see strong sustamned performance in our
Canadian businesses Our individual insurance business grew
shghtly faster than the market, our group retirement services
business recorded solid growth, our group msurance business
continued to experience strong persistency, and cur individual
segregated fund and mutual fund businesses maintained positive
net cash flows
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Individual businesses

The Canadian operations continued to focus on distribution
support and development 1n 2011, both 1n the exclusive and
independent distribution channels The relatonship we have
with advisors supports the very strong persistency of our
business, provides a strategic advantage for us and contributes
to strong market share across our multiple hines of business

Together, Great-West Life, London Life and Canada Life remain
Canada’s number one provider of individual insurance solutions
From term, umversal and participating life insurance to
individuat disability and crnitical illness mnsurance, our broad
range of products gives advisors choice and flexability in meeting
chents’ diverse individual needs Our companies are the leading
provider of participating hife insurance and continue to focus on
excellence in managing and growing our participating business
Within our group of companies participating products have
been continuously offered since 1847 and policyholder
dividends have been paid every year With over 65 years’
experience in the individual disability msurance market,
Great-West Life, together with Canada Life, 1s a leading provider
of 1individual disabilbty and crnucal illness nsurance
in Canada

Great-West Life, London Life and Canada Life offer a broad
choice of investment, savings and income products These
mnclude segregated funds, as well as mutual funds offered
through Quadrus Investment Services Ltd , a mutual fund dealer
affiliated with Great-West Life

Group businesses

in 2011, Great-West Life continued to use technology to enhance
services and deepen cur relanonship with our customers We
were the first in the industry to offer text message notifications
for plan members on their health and dental claims, and to
launch an 1Phone application DrugHub™ - a virtual medicine
cabinet to help people manage their prescription drugs We
significantly expanded our Provider eClaims service The
number of physiotherapy, chiropractic, massage and visioncare
providers who can submit claims electrontcaily on behalf of their
patients more than doubled duning the year to over 9,000




As a leading provider of group benefit solutions, Great-West
continues to advance the cause of workplace mental health
in Canada In 2011, the Great-West Life Centre for Mental
Health 1in the Workplace™ launched Managing Emornons, a
comprehensive awareness, education and training program
offered at no cost to employers This Joins a range of resources
to help employers understand and take steps to improve mental
health 1in the workplace, all publicly available through the
Centre’s website

Group capital accumulauon plans are a core business for Great-
West Life and education for plan members 1s an ongoing
priority We expanded and enhanced our retirement education
tools 1n a range of formats, including wdeos, online resources
and print materals to help plan members at any age and stage
of retirement planmng

Our group retirement and savings plans are talored to
the umque needs of small, medium and large businesses
and orgamizations

Great-West Life continues to offer an important perspective on
pension reform, to help ensure that Canadians save adequately
and effectively for thewr retirement The pending
implementation of Pooled Registered Pension Plans 1s an
impoertant development 1in helping working Canadians save
for retirement

Europe

In Europe, Great-West Life, through its subsidiary Canada
Life, has operations 1n the United Kingdom, Isle of Man, Ireland
and Germany

As a result of our continued focus on credit and expense
controls, our European operations were 1n a strong position
coming 1nto 2011, and this focus was maintained throughout
the year Additionally, there was a renewed focus on risk and
risk management as we prepare for the advent of Solvency 1l
n Europe

In the U K, we continued to grow premmum volumes, especially
in our Isle of Man product range, despite economic challenges
which adversely affected our group insurance business Sales of
payout annuities were very strong in the early part of 2011,
though competitive pressures and a lack of quality investment
opportunities resulted in slower sales throughout the rest of
the year

In Germany, Canada Life operates 1n the independent broker
market and 1s one of the leading insurers for guaranteed umt
hinked products in the broker segment Despite challenging
market conditions for umt linked providers, our retirement
savings product sales, and in particular sales of our market
leading Guaranteed Mmimum Withdrawal Benefit (GMWB)
product, showed strong growth in 2011 Our sertous tllness and
GMWB products retained their status as the leading products in
their categories in a recent poll of insurance intermediaries

In Ireland, Canada Life became the first company to launch a
guaranteed vanable annuty product, and alse launched a new
Income Opportunities Fund, managed by Setanta Asset
Management, the group'’s asset manager in Ireland

Great-West Life participates 1n international reinsurance
markets through Canada Life Remnsurance and London
Reinsurance Group, providing life, annuity and property
and casualty reinsurance in the United States and 1n
international markets

In 2011, reinsurance demand remained strong, particularly for
structured reinsurance sclutions with U S hfe insurers we
continued to leverage our financial strength, disciphned
nsk-management practices and excellent clhient relationships
to achieve strong business results 1n the face of
significant catastrophe impacts early in the year We continue
to follow capital developments globally for potennal
business epportumties

Giving back to our communities

As an orgamization and as ndividuals, we are proud to
contribute to the development of stronger commumties As an
Imagime Canng Company, the financial and volunteer support
we provide to hundreds of chantable, non-profit and
community-based organizations 1s aimed at meeting a high
standard of corporate citizenship

Key to our approach 1s the engagement of staff and distribution
associates, whose efforts embody our commutment to
responsible corporate ciizenship

Board of Directors

On behalf of the Board of Directors, 1t 1s our pleasure to recognize
the professionahism and continuing dedication of the people
across our companies who serve our clients and distribution
associates worldwide We also thank our chents and distribution
associates for their continued support

D Allen Loney
President and
Chuef Executive Officer

Raymond L. McFeetors
Chairman of the Board
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (unaudited)

{in Canadian $ millions except per share amounts)

As at or for the three months ended

For the twelve months ended

December 31 September 30 December 31
2011 201 2010

December 31 December 31
2011 00

Premiums and deposits
Life insurance, guaranteed annuities and insured health preducts
Self funded premium equivalents (ASO contracts)
Segregated funds deposits
Individual preducts
Group products
Propnietary mutual funds deposits

Total premiums and deposrts

Fee and other income
Paid or ¢credited to policyholders

Operating earnings — cormmen sharehotder
Summary of net earnings attributable to
Participating account
Preferred shareholders
Common shareholder

$ 3521 $ 343 $ 3716

$ 14173 $ 14,550

651 660 654 2,645 2,575
1,743 1,940 1,983 7,146 6,643
922 835 920 3,615 3,744
169 149 164 724 616
7,006 7.017 7.437 28,303 28,128
437 409 401 1,673 1575
5,327 5,489 2.811 18,962 18,862
546 441 336 1,825 1635
105 7 a7 117 (10)
- - - - 7
670 441 336 1,949 1,346

Per common share

Operating earnings

$ 25843 { 20822 § 15918

$ 86230 s W

Basic earmngs 316 60 208 22 15918 920 47 642 94
Dwvidends paid 140 06 131 60 - 540 46 415 44
Book value 5,627 00 5,510 00 5,184 00
Total assets $ 188,942 $ 186,618 $ 182,256
Propnietary mutual funds net assets 3,318 3,179 3,272
Tota! assets under management 192,260 189,797 185,528
Qther assets under administration 11,560 11,344 11,762
Total assets under administration $ 203,820 $ 201,141 $ 197,290
Participating account surpius $ 2216 § 2,100 $ 2,038
Shareholders’ equity 11,913 11,664 10,974
Total equity $ 14,129 $ 13,764 $ 13012
The Company uses operating earmings a non-IFRS financial measure which excludes the impact of htigation provisiens 1n note 29 to the Company’s annual consofidated financial st
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FINANCIAL REPORTING RESPONSIBILITY

The consohdated financial statements are the responsibility of management and are prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporung Standards (IFRS) for hife insurance enterpnises, including the accounung requirements of the Office of the
Supernntendent of Financial Institutions Canada The financial information contained elsewhere 1n the annual report 1s consistent with
that in the consolidated financial statements The consolhidated financial statements necessanly include amounts that are based on
management’s best esumates These estimates are based on careful judgments and have been properly reflected in the consohdated
financial statements In the opinion of management, the accounung practices utihzed are appropnate n the circumstances and the
consolidated financial statements present fairly. in all material respects, the financial position of the Company and 1ts segregated funds
and the results of 1ts operatons and 1ts cash flows and the changes n assets of its segregated funds i accordance with 1IFRS, including
the requirements of the Office of the Supenntendent of Financial Institutions Canada

In carrying out 1ts responsibilities, management maintains appropriate internal control over financial reporting designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the rehability of financial reportuing and the preparation of financial statements in accordance with
IFRS, including the requirements of the Office of the Superintendent of Financial Institutions Canada

The consohdated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors, which has oversight responsibilities with respect to
financial reporting The Board of Directors carries out this responsibility principally through the Audit Commuttee, which compnses
non-management directors The Audit Committee 15 charged with, among other things, the responsibility to

* Review the interim and annual consolidated financial statements and report thereon to the Board of Directors
* Review internal control procedures

* Review the independence of the external auditors and the terms of their engagement and recommend the appointment and
compensation of the external auditors to the Board of Directors

* Review other audit, accounting and financial reporting matters as required

In carrying out the above responsibilities, this Committee meets regularly with management, and with both the Company’s external
and internal auditors to review their respective audit plans and to review their audit findings The Commitiee 1s readily accessible to
external and internal auditors and to the Appointed Actuary

The Board of Directors of the Company, pursuant to the Insurance Comparues Act (Canada), appoints an Actuary who 1s a Fellow of the
Canadian Institute of Actuanies The Actuary

* Ensures that the assumptions and methods used mn the valuatuon of policy habilies are 1n accordance with accepted actuarial
practice, applicable legislation and associated regulanions and directives

* Provides an opinion regarding the approprnateness of the policy habilities at the balance sheet date to meet all policyholder
cbliganions Examination of supporting data for accuracy and completeness and analysis of assets for their ability to support the
pelicy llabilities are important elements of the work required to form this opmnion

* Annually analyzes the financial condition of the Company and prepares a report for the Board of Directors The analysis covers a five
year period, and tests the projected capital adequacy of the Company, under adverse economic and business conditions

Deloitte & Touche LLP Chartered Accountants, as the Company’s external auditors, have audited the consolidated financial statements
The Auditors’ Report to the Policyholders and Shareholders 1s presented following the consohdated financial statements Their opimion
15 based upon an examination conducted 1n accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, performing such tests
and other procedures as they consider necessary in order to obtain reasonable assurance that the consohdated financial statements
present fairly, (n all matenal respects, the financial position of the Company and 1ts segregated funds and the results of its operations
and 1ts cash flows and the changes 1n assets of 1ts segregated funds 1n accordance with IFRS

o I

D. Allen Loney William W Lovatt
President and Executive Vice-President and
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

kebruary 9, 2012
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

{in Canadian $ millions except per share amounts)

For the years ended December 31 2011 2010
Income
Premium income
Gross premiums written $ 16,979 $ 17,29
Ceded prem:ums {2,806) (2,746)
Total net premiums 14,173 14,550
Net investment ncome (note 5)
Regular net mvestment income 4,352 4,511
Changes in fair value through profit or loss 3,795 3,197
Tetal net investment income 8,147 7,708
Fee and other income 1,673 1,575
23,993 23,833
Benefits and expenses
Policyholder benefits
Insurance and investment contracts
Gross 14,517 15,104
Ceded (1.472) {2,042
13,045 13,062
Policyholder dividends and experience refunds 1,224 1,261
Change n insurance and investment contract habilities 4,693 4,539
Total paid or credited to policyholders 18,962 18,862
Commissions 1,335 1,270
Operating and admimstrative expenses (note 27) 919 1,818
Premium taxes 235 227
Financing charges {note 15) 79 74
Amortization of finite life intangible assets 54 47
Earnings before income taxes 2,409 1,535
Income taxes (note 26} 343 185
Net earnings before non-controlling interests 2,066 1,350
Attributable to non-controlling interests - 7
Net earnings 2,066 1,343
Net earmings (loss) — participating account {note 19) 17 (10)
Net earnings — shareholders 1.949 1,353
Preferred share dinidends - 7
Net earnings — common shareholder $ 1949 $ 1,346
Earnings per common share § 92047 $ 64294
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

{in Canadian $ millions)

For the years ended December 31 PR 2010

Net earnings $ 2,066 $ 1,343
Other comprehensive income (loss)

Unrealized foreign exchange gains (losses) on translation of foreign operations 82 (368}
Income tax (expense) benefit 1 -
Unreahized gains {losses) on available for sale assets 218 99
Income tax (expense) benefit (a?) {19}
Realized (gains) losses on available for sale assets (81) (59}
Income tax expense (benefit) 18 10
191 (337)
Comprehensive income $ 2,257 $ 1,006
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

{in Canadian $ millions)

December 31 December 31 January 1
2011 2010 2010
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents {note 4) $ 1,855 $ 1,557 $ 3,030
Bonds (note 5) 60,481 55,001 50,183
Mortgage loans {note 5) 14,849 14,3093 15,033
Stocks (note 5) 6,384 6,265 5,904
Investment properties (note 5) 3,198 2,953 2,609
Loans to policyholders 2,858 2,808 2,786
89,625 82,977 79,545
Funds held by ceding insurers (note 6) 9,923 9,856 10,984
Goodwill {note 10) 5,267 5,267 5,270
Intangible assets (note 10} 1,511 1,515 1,538
Derwative financial instruments (note 28) 927 930 693
Owner occupied properties (note 11) 357 310 29
Fixed assets (note 11) 97 85 Bl
Reinsurance assets {note 14) 4,046 4,433 4,889
Other assets (note 12} 2,935 3,226 3,068
Deferred tax assets {note 26) 31 19 63
Segregated funds for the nisk of uitholders (note 13) 74,223 73,638 67,805
Total assets $ 188,942 $ 182,256 $ 174237
Liabilities
Insurance contract hiabilities {note 14) $ 94,111 $ 88929 $ 81446
Investment contract habilities (note 14} 746 Te4 820
Debentures and other debt instruments (note 16) 303 304 305
Funds held under reinsurance contracts 630 582 758
Derwvative financial instruments (note 28} 273 148 188
Other habthities {(note 17) 2,937 3.371 2,686
Deferred tax habilities {note 26} 796 621 557
Repurchase agreements 23 14 17
Capital trust secunties {note 18) A 773 778
Investment and insurance contracts on account of unitholders {note 13) 74,223 73,638 67,805
Total habihities 174,813 169,244 161,360
Eqtnty
Participating account surplus {note 19} 2,216 2,038 2,040
Non-controlling interests - - 147
Shareholders' equity
Share capital {note 20}
Preferred shares 1 1 158
Common shares 6,426 6,426 6,116
Accumulated surplus 5,418 4,613 4,140
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss} (150 (280) 85
Contributed surplus 218 214 211
Total equity 14,129 13,012 12,877
Total habilities and equity $ 188,942 § 182,256 § 174,237
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(in Canadian § mlions)

December 31, 2011

Accumulated
other Total Non Partiopating
Share Contributed Accumulated comprehensive shareholders’ controlling account Total
capital surplus surplus income (foss) equity Interests surplus equity
Balance, beginning of year $ 6,427 $ 214 $ 4613 $ (280} $ 10,974 $ - $ 2,038 % 13,012
Net earnings - - 1,949 - 1,949 - "7 2,066
Other comprehensive income
(loss) - - - 130 130 - 61 M
6,427 214 6,562 {150) 13,053 - 2,216 15,269
Dwidends to common
shareholder - - (1,144) - (1,144) - - {1,144)
Share based payments - 4 - - 4 - - 4
Balance, end of year $ 6,427 $ 218 $ 5418 $ (150) $ 11,913 $ - $ 2,216 $ 14,129
December 31, 2010
Accumulated
other Total Non Participating
Share Contributed Accumulated comprehensive shareholders’ controlling account Total
capital surplus surplus income {loss) equIty nterests surplus equity
Balance, beginning of year $ 6274 $ m $ 4140 $ 65 $ 10,690 S 147 s 2,040 $ 12,877
Net earnings - - 1,353 - 1,353 - {10) 1,343
Other comprehensive income
{loss) - - - (345) (345) - 8 (337}
6,274 21 5,493 {(280) 11,698 147 2,038 13,883
Redemption of preferred shares
1n subsidary - - (5) - {5} (147) - (152)
Redemption of Senes O
preferred shares (157) - - - (157} - - (157)
Issue common shares to parent 30 - - - 310 - - 310
Diwvidends to shareholders
Preferred shareholders - - (n - (N - - )]
Common shareholder - - (868) - (868) - - (868)
Share based payments - 3 - - 3 - - 3
Balance, end of year $ 6,427 $ 214 $ 4613 $ (280) $ 10,974 3 - $ 2,038 $ 13,012
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in Canadian $ millions)

For the years ended December 31 pLIR 2010
Operations
Earnings before income taxes $ 2409 $ 1535
Income taxes paid, net of refunds recewved 197 75
Adjustments
Change in insurance and nvestment contract iabilities 4,378 4,653
Change 1n funds held by ceding insurers 478 679
Change in funds held under reinsurance contracts 25 (121)
Change in deferred acquisition costs (15 (49)
Change in reinsurance assets 464 pLy)
Changes in fair value through profit or loss (3,795) (3,197
Other (554) 816
Cash flows from operations 3,587 4,632
Financing Activities
Issue of common shares to parent - 310
Redempuion of preferred shares - (157)
Redemption of preferred shares in subsidiary - (150)
Repayment of debentures and other debt instruments {1} {1}
Dividends paid on common shares (1,144) (868}
Dwidends paid on preferred shares - @
{1,145) (873}
Investment Activities
Bond sales and maturitres 13,606 13,718
Mortgage loan repayments 1,660 1,939
Stock sales 2,227 2,238
investrment property sales 70 1%
Change 1n loans to policyholders (38) {46)
Investment m bonds {14,760) {18,894)
Investment in mortgage loans {2,098) {1,581)
Investment In stocks {2,619} (2,045)
Investment in investment properties (209} (376)
(2,161) (5,032)
Effect of changes in exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents 17 {200)
Increase {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 298 (1,473)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 1,557 3,030
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 1,855 § 1557
Supplementary cash flow information
Interest income received $ 3,749 $ 3754
Interest pard $ 81 $ 76
Dividend income received $ 181 $ 174
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{in Canadian $ milions except per share amounts)

1 Corporate Information

The Great-West Life Assurance Company {Great-West Life or the Company) 1s incorporated and domiciled 1n Canada The registered
address of the Company 1s 100 Osborne Street North, Winmuipeg, Manitoba, Canada, R3C 1V3 Great-West Life 1s wholly-owned by Great-
West Lifeco Inc (TLifeco)

Great-West Life 1s a leading Canadian nsurer, with interests 1n the hfe and health insurance, investment, savings and retirement
income and remsurance businesses, pnmarily in Canada and Europe through 1ts major subsidianies London Insurance Group Inc
(LIG), Canada Life Financial Corporation (CLFC), GLC Asset Management Lid and GWL Realty Advisors Inc

The consohdated financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2011 were authorized for 1ssue by the Board
of Directors on February 9, 2012

2 Basis of Presentation and Summary of Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared 1 accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), as 1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)

The financial statements are prepared using IFRS accounting policies which became Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles (CGAAP} for publicly accountable enterprises and were adopted by the Company for fiscal years beginning on January 1,
2011 These accounting policies are based on the IFRS standards and IFRS Interpretanons Commuittee (IFRIC) interpretations that the
Company apphed at December 31, 2011

Prior to the adoption of IFRS the Company's financial statements were prepared in accordance wrth the previeus CGAAE which differs
i1 some areas from IFRS See note 3 for an explanation of how the adoption of IFRS has affected the reported financial position,
financial performance and accounting policies of the Company This note includes reconciiations of equity and comprehensive
mcome under [FRS for the comparative periods and of equity at the date of transition reported under previous CGAAP for those periods
and at the date of transition to IFRS

Basis of Consolidation

The consohdated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company as at December 31, 2011 Subsicharies are
fully consohdated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Company obtains control, and continue to be consohdated
unul the date that such control ceases All intra-group balances, transactions, income and expenses and profits and losses, includmg
dividends resulting from 1ntra-group transactions, are eliminated on consolidation

Critical Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of financial statements w conformity with IFRS requires management to make estimates and assumphions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and habihties at the reporting date and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period Areas where estinates and judgments are exercised by management
include the valuation and classification of msurance and investment contract habilities, determination of the fair value and
classification for certain financial assets and habilities, goodwill and 1ndefinite Life intangible assets, income taxes, coningencies and
pension plans and other post-employment benefits In add:tion, the financial statements required management’s judgments in
accounting for deferred 1ncome reserves (DIR) and deferred acquisition costs (DAC), the valuation of deferred income tax assets, the
level of compoenentization of property, plant and equipment, determination of relationships with subsidiaries and special purpose
entities and the identfication of cash generating units and operating segments Actual results will differ from those estimates Areas
where significant estimates and judgments have been apphed by management are described further in the significant accounting
policies below

The annual results of the Company reflect management's judgments regarding the impact of prevailing global credit, equity and foreign

exchange market conditions The estimation of msurance and investment contract habihties relies upon investment credit ratings The

Company’s practice 1s to use third party independent credit ratings where available

The significant accounting pohicies are as follows

(a) Portfolio Investments
Portfolio investments include bonds, mortgage loans, stocks, investment properties and loans to policyhalders Portfolio
wvestments are classified as fair value through profit or loss, available for sale, held te maturity, loans and recervables or as non-
financial instruments based on management’s intention relating to the purpose and nature of the mstrument or characteristics of
the investment The Company currently has not classified any mvestments as held to maturity
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Investments 1n bonds and stocks normally actively traded on a public market are either designated or classified as fair value
through profit or loss or classified as available for sale on a trade date basis, based on management’s intention Fair value through
profit or loss investments are recognized at fair value on the Consolidated Balance Sheets with realized and unrealized gains and
losses reported 1n the Consolidated Statermnents of Earmings Available for sale investments are recogmzed at fair value on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets with unrealized gains and losses recorded n other comprehensive income (OCI} Realized gains and
losses are reclassified from OCI and recorded 1n the Consolidated Statements of Earnings when the available for sale investment
1s sold Interest income earned on both fair value through profit or loss and available for sale bonds 15 recorded as investment
income earned n the Consolidated Statements of Earnings

Investments 1n equity instruments where a market value cannot be measured rehably are classified as available for sale and carned
at cost Investments in stocks which the Company exerts significant influence over but does not control are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting Investments mn stocks include the Company’s investment in an affihated company, IGM
Financial Inc (IGM), a member of the Power Financial Corporation group of compantes, over which it exerts sigmficant influence
but does not control The investment 1s accounted for using the equity method of accounting

Investments 1n mortgages and bonds not normally actively traded on a public market are classified as loans and recervables and
are carried at amortized cost net of any allowance for credit losses Interest income earned and realized gains and losses on the
sale of investments classified as loans and receivables are recorded 1n the Consolidated Statements of Earnings and included n
nvestment icome earned

Investment properties are imitially measured at cost and subsequently carried at fair value on the Consolidated Balance Sheets All
changes n fair value are recorded as investment income earned i the Consohdated Statements of Earnings Fair values for
mvestment properties are determined using independent qualified appraisal services Properties that are leased that would
otherwise be classified as investment property if owned by the Company are also included with investment properties

Fair Value Measurement

Financial instrument carrying values necessanly reflect the prevailling market hquidity and the hquidity premiums embedded
within the market pricing methods the Company relies upon

The following 1s a description of the methodologies used to value instruments carried at fair value
Bonds — Fair Value Through Profir or Loss and Available for Sale

Faur values for bonds classified as fair value through profit or loss or available for sale are determined with reference to quoted
market bid prices primanly provided by third party independent pricing sources Where prices are not quoted in a normally active
market, fair values are determined by valuation models The Company maximizes the use of observable inputs and mininuzes the
use of unobservable iInputs when measunng faur value The Company obtains quoted prices 1n active markets, when available, for
identical assets at the balance sheet date to measure bonds at fair value in 1ts fair value through profit or loss and available for sale
portfolios

The Company estimates the fair value of bonds not traded 1n active markets by referring to actively traded securities with sirmlar
attributes, dealer quotations, matrix pricing methodology, discounted cash flow analyses and/or internal valuation models This
methodology considers such factors as the 1ssuer’s industry, the security’s rating, term, coupon rate and position 1n the capital
structure of the 1ssuer, as well as yield curves, credit curves, prepayment rates and other relevant factors For bonds that are not
traded 1n actuive markets, valuations are adjusted to reflect iliguicity, and such adjustments generally are based on available
market evidence In the absence of such evidence, management's best estimate 15 used

Stocks — Fair Value Through Profit or Loss and Available for Sale

Fair values for public stocks are generally determined by the last bid price for the security from the exchange where 1t1s principally
traded Fair values for stocks for which there 1s no active market are determined by discounting expected future cash flows The
Company maximizes the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs when measuning fair value The
Company obtains quoted prices in active markets, when available, for identical assets at the balance sheet date to measure stocks
at fair value 1n 1ts fair value through profit or loss and available for sale portfolios

Mortgages and Bonds — Loans and Receivables

Market values for bonds and mortgages classified as loans and receivables are determined by discounting expected future cash
flows using current market rates

Investment Properties

Market values for investment properties are determined using independent qualified appraisal services and include management
adjustments for material changes 1n property cash flows, capital expenditures or general market conditions in the interim pertod
between appraisals
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(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Impairment

[nvestments are reviewed regularly on an individual basis to determine impairment status The Company considers various factors
in the impairment evaluation process, including, but not mited to, the financial condiuon of the issuer, specific adverse
condittons affecting an industry or region, decline in fair value not related to interest rates, bankruptcy or defaults and
delinquency in payments of interest or principal [nvestments are deemed to be impaired when there 15 no longer reasonable
assurance of umely collection of the full amount of the principal and interest due The market value of an investment 1s not a
defimtive indicator of impairment, as it may be sigmficantly influenced by other factors including the remaining term to maturity
and liquudity of the asset However market price must be taken into consideration when evaluating impairment

For impaired mortgages and bonds classified as loans and receivables, provisions are established or write-offs made to adjust the
carrying value to the net realizable amount Wherever possible the fair value of collateral underlying the loans or observable
market price 1s used to establish net realizable value For impaired available for sale loans, recorded at fair value, the accumulated
loss recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income (AOCI) 1s reclassified te net investment income Impairments on
available for sale debtinstrumnents are reversed if there 1s objective evidence that a permanent recovery has occurred All gains and
losses on bonds classified or designated as fair value through profit or loss are already recorded 1n income, therefore a reduction
due to impairment of these assets will be recorded in income As well, when determined to be impaired, interest 1s no longer
accrued and previous interest accruals are reversed

Transaction Costs

Transaction costs are expensed as incurred for financial instruments classified as fair value through profit or loss Transaction
costs for financial assets classified as available for sale or loans and receivables are added to the value of the nstrument at
acqusition and taken 1nto net earnings using the effective interest rate method Transaction costs for financial habuities classified
as other than fair value through profit or loss are added to the value of the instrument 1ssued and taken into net earmings using the
effective interest rate method

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash, current operating accounts, overnight bank and term deposits with ongmal maturities
of three months or less, and fixed income secunties with an original term to matunty of three months or less Net payments in
transit and overdraft bank balances are included mn other habilities The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents approximates
therr fair value

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities, other than insurance and investment contract habilities, are classified as either capital trust securities or other
habihties Debentures and other debt instruments, capital trust securities and other habihities are iutially recorded on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value and subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method with
amortization expense recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings

Derivative Financial Instrizments

The Company uses derivative products as risk management instruments to hedge or manage asset, hability and capital positions,
mcluding revenues The Company’s policy guidelines prohibit the use of derivative instruments for speculative trading purposes

The Company cludes disclosure of the maximum credit risk, future credit exposure, credit risk equivalent and risk weighted
equivalent in note 28 as prescribed by the Office of the Superintendent of Financial Institutions of Canada (OSFID

All denivanves including those that are embedded 1n financial and non-financial contracts that are not closely related to the host
contracts are recorded at fair value on the Consolidated Balance Sheets The method of recognizing unrealized and reahized fair
value gans and losses depends on whether the dervatives are designated as hedging instruments For derrvatives that are not
designated as hedging instruments, unrealized and realized gains and losses are recorded in net investment income on the
Consolidated Statements of Earnings For derivatives designated as hedging instruments, unrealized and realized gains and losses
are recognized according to the nature of the hedged 1tem

Dervauves are valued using market transactions and other market evidence whenever possible, including market based inputs to
maodels, broker or dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources with reasonable levels of price transparency When models are
used, the selection of a particular mode! to value a derivauve depends on the contractual terms of, and specific nisks mherent 1n
the mnstrument, as well as the availability of pricing information in the market The Company generally uses similar models to
value similar instruments Valuation models requure a variety of mnputs, including contractual terms, market prices and rates, yield
curves, credit curves, measures of volatility, prepayment rates and correlations of such inputs

To quahfy for hedge accounting, the relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument must meet several strict
conditions on documentation, probability of occurrence, hedge effectiveness and reliability of measurement If these conditions
are not met, then the relationship does not qualify for hedge accounting treatment and both the hedged 1tem and the hedging
instrument are reported independently as if there was no hedging relationship
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(f)

[£:3]

(h)

(i)

4

Where a hedging relanonship exists, the Company documents all relationships between hedging instruments and hedged 1items,
as well as 1ts risk management objectives and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions This process includes hnking
derivatives that are used 1n hedging transactions to specific assets and hiabilities on the Consohidated Balance Sheets or to specific
firm commuitments or forecasted transactions The Company also assesses, both at the hedge’s incepticn and on an ongoing basis,
whether derivatives that are used 1n hedging transactions are effective i offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged
items Hedge effectiveness 1s reviewed quarterly through correlation testing

Derivatives not designated as hedges for accounting purposes
For dervative mvestments not designated as accounting hedges, changes 1n fair value are recorded 11 net investment income
Fair value hedges

For fair value hedges, changes in fair value of both the hedging instrument and the hedged 1tem are recorded 1n net investment
income and consequently any ineffective portion of the hedge 15 recorded immediately to net investment income

The Company currently uses interest rate swaps designated as fair value hedges
Cash flow hedges

Certain interest rate swaps and cross currency swaps are used to hedge cash flows For cash flow hedges, the effective portion of
the changes in fair value of the hedging instrument 15 recorded 1n the same manner as the hedged item 1n erther net investment
mcome or OCI while the meffective portion 1s recognized immediately in net investment income Gamns and losses that
accumulate 1n OCI are recorded 1n net investment income n the same period the hedged 1tem affects net earnings Gains and
losses on cash flow hedges are immedately reclassified from OCI to net investment income 1if and when 1t 1s probable that a
forecasted transaction 1s no longer expected to occur

The Company currently has no denvatives designated as cash flow hedges
Net investment hedges

Foreign exchange forward contracts are used to hedge the net investment in the Company’s foreign operations Changes 1n the
fair value of these hedges are recorded in OCI Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the hedging no longer quahfies for
hedge accounting

The Company currently has no derivatives designated as net investment hedges
Embedded Derivatives

Embedded derivatives are treated as separate contracts and are recorded at fair value 1f their economic charactenistics and risks
are not closely related to those of the host contract and the host contract 1s not 1tself recorded at fair value through the
Consolidated Statements of Earnings Embedded denvatives that meet the defimition of an insurance contract are accounted for
and measured as an 1nsurance contract

Foreign Currency Translation

The Company operates with multiple functional currencies The Company's consolhidated financial statements are presented 1n
Canadian dollars as this presentation 1s most meantngful to financial sitatement users For those subsidiaries with
different functional currencies, exchange rate differences ansing from the translation of monetary 1tems that form part of the
net investment 1n the foreign operation are taken to unrealized foreign exchange gains (losses) on translation of foreign operations
m AOCI

For the purpose of presenting consohidated financial statements, assets and habilities are translated into Canadian dollars at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet dates and all Income and expense 1tems are translated at an average of daily rates
Unrealized foreign currency translation gains and losses on the Company’s net investment in 1ts foreign operations are presented
separately as a component of OCI Unrealized gains and losses will be recognized proportionately in net investment income on
the Consolidated Statements of Earnings when there has been a disposal of the investment in the foreign cperations Foreign
currency translation gains and losses on foreign currency transactions of the Company are included 1n net investment income and
are not matenal to the financial statements of the Company

Loans to Policyholders

Loans to policyholders are shown at their unpaid principal balance and are fully secured by the cash surrender values of the
policies Carryimng value of loans to policyholders approximates therr fair value

Funds Held by Ceding Insurers/Funds Held Under Reinsurance Contracts

Under certain forms of reinsurance contracts, 1t 1s customary for the ceding msurer to retain possession of the assets supporting
the habihities ceded The Company records an amount receivable from the ceding insurer or payable to the remnsurer representing
the premium due Investment revenue on these funds withheld 1s credited by the ceding insurer
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(k)

m

Reinsurance Contracts

The Company, in the normal course of business, 1s both a user and provider of reinsurance 1n order to lumit the potental for losses
ansing from certain exposures Assumed remsurance refers 1o the acceptance of certain mnsurance nisks by the Company
underwritten by another company Ceded reinsurance refers to the transfer of insurance risk, along with the respective prermums,
to cne or more remnsurers who will share the risks To the extent that assuming reinsurers are unable to meet their obhigations, the
Company remains hable to 1ts policyholders for the portion reinsured Consequently, allowances are made for remnsurance
contracts which are deemed uncollectible

Assumed reinsurance premiums, commissions and claim settlements, as well as the reinsurance assets associated with insurance
and investment contracts, are accounted for in accordance with the terms and conditions of the undetlying reinsurance contract
Reinsurance assets are reviewed for impairment on a regular basis for any events that may trigger impairment The Company
considers various factors in the impairment evaluation process, including but not imited to, collectability of amounts due under
the terms of the contract The carrying amount of a remnsurance asset 1s adjusted through an allowance account with any
impairment loss being recorded 1n the Consolidated Statements of Earnings

Any gains or losses on buying reinsurance are recogmzed 1n the Consolidated Statements of Earnings immediately at the date of
purchase and are not amortized

Premiums and claums ceded for reinsurance are deducted from premiums earned and insurance and investment contract benefits
Assets and habilities related te remnsurance are reported on a gross basis in the Consohdated Balance Sheets The amount of
habilities ceded to reinsurers 1s estimated 1n a manner consistent with the claim hability assoclated with remsured risks

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goedwll represents the excess of purchase consideration over the fair value of net assets of acquired subsidiaries of the Company
Following tmitral recogmtion, goodwill 1s measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses

Intangible assets represent finite fe and indefinite ife intangible assets of acquired subsidianies of the Company and software
acquired or internally developed by the Company Fimite life intangible assets include the value of software, customer contracts
and distribution channels These finite hfe intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful hives, generally not
exceeding 10 years, 20 years and 30 years respectively

Indefinite hife intangible assets include brands and trademarks, customer contracts and the shareholder’s portion of acquired
future participating account profits. Amounts are classified as indefinite hfe intangible assets when based on an analysis of ail the
relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset 15 expected to generate net cash inflows for the
Company The identification of indefinite hfe intangible assets 1s made by reference to relevant factors such as product life cycles,
potential obsolescence, industry stability and competitive position

Impatrment Testing

Goodwill and intangible assets are tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events indicate that irnpairment may have
occurred Intangibie assets that were previously umpaired are reviewed at each reporting date for evidence of reversal In the event
that certain cenditions have been met, the Company would be required to reverse the impairment charge or a portion thereof

Goodwill has been allocated to cash generating units (CGU), representung the lowest level in which goodwill ts monitored for
mternal reporting purposes Goodwll 1s tested for imparrment by comparing carrying value of the CGU groups to the recoverable
amount to which the goodwill has been allocated Intangible assets are tested for impairment by comparnng the asset's carrying
amount ta 1ts recoverable amount An umpairment loss 1s recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
1ts recoverable amount

The recoverable amount 1s the higher of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use, which 1s calculated using the
present value of esimated future cash flows expected to be generated

Revenue Recognition

Premiums for all types of insurance contracts, and contracts with hmited mortality or morbidity nisk, are generally recognized as
revenue when due and collection 1s reasonably assured When premiums are recogmzed, insurance contract liabihties are
computed, with the result that benefits and expenses are matched with such revenue

Fee and other income 1s recogmzed when earned, collectible and the amount can be reasonably estimated Fee and other income
primarily includes fees earned from the management of segregated fund assets, proprietary mutual funds assets, fees earned on
admimstrative services only (ASO)} Group health contracts and fees earned from management services
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Fixed assets and property held for own use 15 carned at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairments Depreciation 1s
charged so as to write-off the cost of assets, over their esimated useful lives, using the straight-line method, on the following
bases

Owner occupled properties 15 — 20 years
Furniture and fixtures 5~ 10 years
Other fixed assets 3 =10 years

Other Assets

Included 1n other assets are DAC relating to investment contracts These are recognized if the costs are incremental and incurred
due to the contract being 1ssued

Segregated Funds for the Risk of Unitholders

Segregated funds assets and liabilities arise from contracts where all financial nisks associated with related assets are borne by unit
holders and are presented separately 1n the Consclidated Balance Sheets at fair value Investment income and changes in market
value of the segregated fund assets are offset by a corresponding change in the segregated fund habihities

Insurance and Investment Contract Liabilities
Contract Classification

The Company’s products are classified at contract inception, for accounting purposes, as Insurance, service or imnvestment
contracts depending on the existence of significant insurance nsk Sigmificant insurance nisk exists when the Company agrees to
compensate policyholders or beneficiaries of the contract for specified uncertain future events that adversely affect the
policyholder and whose amount and timing 1s unknown When significant insurance risk exists, the contract 1s accounted for as
an msurance contract in accordance with IFRS 4, Insurance Contracts (IFRS 4) Refer to note 14 for a discussion of insurance nsk

In the absence of sigmficant insurance risk, the contract 1s classified as an investment or service contract Investment contracts
with discretionary participating features (DFPF) are accounted for in accordance with IFRS 4 and investment contracts without DPF
are accounted for in accordance with 1AS 39, Frnancial Instruments Recognition & Measurement The Company has not classified
any contracts as investment contracts with DPF Service contracts mainly relate to ASO coniracts and are accounted for under
LAS 18, Revenue Recognition

Investment contracts may be reclassified as insurance contracts after inception if insurance rnisk becomes significant A contract
that 1s classified as an insurance contract at contract inception remains as such until all nghts and obhgations under the contract
are extinguished or expire

Investment contracts are contracts that carry financial nisk, which 1s the nisk of a possible future change 1n one or more of the
following interest rate, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, or credit rating Refer to note 7 for discussion of risk management

Measurement

Insurance contract habilities represent the amounts required, 1n additien to future premiums and mvestment income, to provide
for future benefit payments, policyholder dividends, commission and pelicy admimstrative expenses for all insurance and annuity
policies 1n force with the Company The Appomnted Actuary of the Company 1s responsible for determining the amount of the
Lhabilities to make appropnate provisions for the Company's ocbhgations to policyholders The Appointed Actuary determines the
hiabilines for insurance contracts and nvestment contracts using generally accepted actuanial practices, according to the
standards established by the Canadian Insutute of Actuanies The valuation uses the Canadian Asset Liability Method (CALM) This
method 1nvolves the projection of future events in order to determine the amount of assets that must be set aside currently to
provide for all future obligations and involves a significant amount of judgment

Investment contract habilities are measured at fair value through profit or loss, except for certain annuity products measured at
amortized cost

Deferred Income Reserves

Included 1n other Liabilines are DIR relating to investment contract Labilities These are amortized on a straight-line basis to
recogmze the imtial policy fees over the policy term, not to exceed 20 years, to release revenue as 1t 15 earned over the policy term

The Great West Life Assurance Company Annual Report 2011




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(r)

(s}

Participating Account

The shareholder portion of parucipaung earnings represents, as restricted by law, a portion of net earnings before policyholder
dmvidends of the participating account, $91 1n 2011 ($47 10 2010) The actual payment of the shareholder portion of participating
earnings 15 legally determined as a percentage of policyholder dividends paid $55 of shareholder surplus ($51 1n 2010) that has
been recogmzed but not paid 1s dependent on future payment of dividends to participating policyholders

The Canada Life Assurance Company {Canada Life) participating account comprises two main subdivisions The Liabilities for
parucipating policies 1ssued or assumed by Canada Life pnior to demutuahzation are held in closed block sub-accounts These
liabilities for guaranteed and other non-guaranteed benefits are determined using best estimate assumpuons If at any time the
value of the assets allocated to these policies were, in the opinion of the Appointed Actuary, less than the assets required n the
long term to support the habilities of these policies and the future reasonable expectations of the policyholders, assets having a
sufficient value to rectify the situation would be transferred first from the addiuonal ancillary sub-accounts maintaimned n the
participating account for this purpose and then, if the deficiency 1s expected to be permanent, from the shareholder account Any
such transfers frem the shareholder account would be recorded as a charge to shareholder net earnings

The second matn subdivision compnises the open block sub-accounts containing all habihinies 1n respect of new participating
pehcies issued on or after demutualizanon On demutualizatien, $50 of seed capital was transferred from shareholder surplus to
the participating account The seed capital amount, together with a reasonable rate of return, may be transferred to the
shareholder account if the seed capital 1s no longer required to support the new participating policies Transfers of seed capital to
the sharehoider account would be returns of capital and would be recorded as adjustments to shareholder surplus A reasonable
rate of return on seed capital will be recogmzed as income n the shareholder account and as an expense in the parucipating
account when paid $15 (US$15) of seed capital remains to be repaid

Income Taxes

On December 20, 2010, the IASB 1ssued “Deferred Tax Recovery of Underlying Assets (Amendments to IAS 12)” concerning the
determination of deferred tax on investment property measured at fair market value 1AS 12 was updated to include a rebuttable
presumption that a deferred tax on investment property measured using the fair value model in IAS 40 should be determined
on the basis that its carrying amount will be recovered through sale The amendments are mandatory for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2012, but early adoption 1s permitted The Company has elected to adopt the amendment effective
January 1, 2011

The income tax expense for the period represents the sum of current income tax and deferred imcome tax Income tax 1s recognized
as an expense or income 1n profit or loss except to the extent that 1t relates to 1tems that are recognized outside profit or loss
{whether 1n OCI or directly in equity), in which case the income tax 1s also recogmzed outside profit or loss

Current Income Tax

Current income tax 1s based on taxable income for the year Current tax habilities (assets) for the current and prior pentods are
measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered from) the taxation authorities using the tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date Current tax assets and current tax habilities are offset if a legally enforceable
night exists to offset the recognized amounts and the entity intends either to settie on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle
the habilities simultaneously

Deferred income Tax

Deferred income tax 1s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences anising between the carrying amounts of assets
and habihities 1n the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable income and 1s
accounted for using the balance sheet iability method Deferred tax liabihities are generally recogmzed for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that 1t 1s more hikely than not that taxabie profits will be available
agamst which deductible temporary differences can be utihzed Such assets and Liabilines are not recognized if the temporary
difference arises from the imtial recognition of an asset or liability 1n a transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss
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Deferred tax assets and habilities are measured at the tax rates expected to apply in the year when the asset 1s realized or the
liability 15 settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws} that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax habilities are offset if a legally enforceable nght exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax habilities and the deferred income taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authonty

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 13 reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that 1t 1s no longer
more likely than not that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized
Unrecogmzed deferred tax assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and are recognized to the extent that 1t has become
more hkely than not that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered

Deferred tax habihiues are recognized for taxable temporary differences ansing on investments 1n subsidiaries and associates,
except where the group controls the umng of the reversal of the temporary difference and 1t 1s more hkely than not that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Under the 1FRS hab:hty method, a provision for tax uncertamnties which meet the more likely than not threshold for recognition
are measured Measurement of the provision 1s based on the probability weighted average approach

Policyholder Benefits

Gross benefits and claims tor hite insurance contracts include the cost of all claims arising during the yedr, settlement of claims, as
well as changes 1n the gross valuation of insurance contracts Death claims and surrenders are recorded on the basis of
notifications received Matunties and annuity payments are recorded when due

Repurchase Agreements

The Company enters into repurchase agreements with thurd-party broker-dealers in which the Company seils securiies and
agrees to repurchase substanually similar secunties at a specified date and price As substantially all of the nisks and rewards of
ownership of the assets are retained, the Company does not derecogmze the assets Such agreements are accounted for as
investment financings

Pension Plans and Other Post-Employment Benefits

The Company and its subsidiaries mamntain contributory and non-contributory defined benefit pension plans for certain
employees and advisors The Company and 1ts subsidiaries also maimntain defined contribution pension plans for certain
employees and advisors The cost of defined pension benefits 1s charged to net earnings using the projected unit credit method
prorated on services {(see note 23)

For the Company's defined benefit plans, actuanal gains and losses are amortzed 1nto the Consolidated Statements of Earnings
using the straight-line method over the expected average remaimng working lives of employees covered by the plan to the extent
that the net cumulative unrecognized actuarial gains and losses at the end of the previous reporting period exceed cormdor limits
The corndor 1s defined as ten percent of the greater of the present value of the defined benefit obligation or the fair value of plan
assets The amortization charge 1s re-assessed at the beginning of each year

The Company and 1ts subsidiaries also provide post-employment health, dental and life insurance benefits to eligible employees,
advisors and their dependents The cost of post-employment health, dental and life insurance benefits 1s charged to net earmings
using the projected unit credit method prorated on service (see note 23)

Share Capital and Surplus

Financial instruments 1ssued by the Company are classified as share capital if they represent a residual interest 1n the assets of the
Company Preferred share capital 1s classified as equity 1f 1t 1s non-redeemable, or retractable only at the Company's option and
any dividends are discretionary Incremental costs that are directly attributable to the 1ssue of share capital are recogmzed as a
deduction from equity, net of iIncome tax

Contributed surplus represents the vesting of share options

Accumulated other comprehensive income represents the total of the unrealized foreign exchange gains (losses) on translation of
foreign operations, the gains (losses) on available for sale assets, and the unrealized gains (losses) on cash flow hedges

Non-contrelling interests represent the proportion of equity that 1s attributable to minonty shareholders
Partuicipating account surplus represents the proportion of equty attnibutable to the participating account
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(x) Share Based Payments

Lafeco has a stock option plan that provides for the granting of options on common shares of Lifeco to certain officers and
employees of Lifeco and its affihates The Company follows the fair value based methad of accounung for the valuanon of
compensation expense for shares and share options granted to employees under its stock option plans (see note 22)
Cempensation expense 1s recogmzed as an 1ncrease to compensation expense 11 the Consohdated Statements of Earnings and an
increase to contnibuted surplus over the vesting period of the granted options

(v} Earnings Per Common Share

Earnings per common share 1s calculated using net earnings after preferred share dividends and the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding of 2,117,015 1n 2011 (2,093,861 1n 2010)

{z) Leases

Leases that do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as operatung leases Payments made
under operating leases, where the Company 1s the lessee, are charged to net earmngs over the period of use

Where the Company is the lessor under an operating lease for 1ts iInvestment property, the assets subject to the lease arrangement
are presented within the Consolidated Balance Sheets Income from these leases 1s recognized in the Consolidated Statements of
Earnings on a straight-lhne basts over the lease term

(aa) Operating Segments

Operating segments have been identified based on internal reports that are regularly reviewed by the Company's Chief Executive
Officer to allocate resources and assess performance of segments The Company's reportable business segments are the
participating and shareholder operations of the Company Within these segments the major business units are Indindual
Insurance, Wealth Management, Group Insurance, Europe, Corporate, and Participating Reinsurance operations and operations
m all countries other than Canada and the United States are reported as part of the Europe segment The Corporate segment
represents acuvittes and transactions that are not directly attributable to the measurement of the operating segments of
the Company

3 Reconahations of IFRS Equity and Comprehensive Income

Application of IFRS-1

The Company’s annual consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with [FRS as 1ssued by the IASB and as
adopted by the Accounting Standards Board of Canada for financial reporting periods beginming on or after January 1, 2011 References
made to IAS throughout refer to the application of IAS and related interpretanions of IFRIC and interpretanons of the Standing
Interpretations Committee (SIC)

These are the first annual consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS, with the 2010 comparatives restated
accordingly Prior to the adopticn of IFRS, the consolidated financial statements were prepared 1n accordance with the previous CGAAP

The effects of the transition to IFRS as of January 1, 2010 on the financial position, financial performance and cash flows for the periods
presented are as follows

Reconciliations of Previous CGAAP to IFRS

At transition to IFRS the Company applied IFRS 1, First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS 1) which
requires the Company to reconcile accumulated surplus and comprehensive income for prior pentods presented The adeption of IFRS
has not changed the Company’s cash flows however 1t has resulted 1n certain changes to the Company'’s reported financial position and
results of operations [FRS has also resulted in a number of presentation changes to the Company's financial statements In order for
users to understand the effects of adopting IFRS, reconciliations of the Company's financial statements from the previous CGAAP to
IFRS along with narrative explanations have been provided below

IFRS does not allow the use of hindsight to recreate or revise estimates and consequently the estimates previously made by the
Company under the previous CGAAP were not revised when converting to IFRS except where necessary to reflect any difference in
accounting policies
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Reconciltations of IFRS Equity and Comprehensive Income (cont'd)

Reconcilhiation of consohidated equity from the previous CGAAP to [FRS

Comparatve
Date of wansion  penod reported
to IFRS under CGAAP
January 1 2010 December 31, 2010
Total surplus under the previous CGAAP $ 13,268 $ 13,550
2010 year to date IFRS equity adjustments
Impact on shareholder surplus - (579}
Impact on participating account surplus - 41
Net Impact of IFRS on eguity - {538)
Begining surplus restated under IFRS 13,268 13,012
IFRS 1 optional elections/exemptions
Empleyee benefits cumulative unamortized actuanial gains and losses a (220) -
Cumulative translation losses of foreign operations — sharehoider b (1.091) -
Redesignation of finanaial assets c (88) -
Fair value as deemed cost of owner occupied properties d 21 -
IFRS adjustments
Measurement of investment properties and owner occupied properties f 19 1
Derecognition of deferred net realized gains g 104 (12)
Unamortized vested past service costs and other employment benefits h 120 {10)
Uncertain income tax provisions | (230) {22)
DAC and DIR on investment contracts ] {4711) 18
Other adjustments k (6) 1
Income tax effect of the above adjustments | 45 (8}
Total IFRS adjustment to shareholder account {1,697) {32)
Adjustment related to participating account surplus in subsidianies k (41) 9
Total IFRS adjustment (1,738} 23)
11,530 12,989
Accumulated other comprehensive income .
Cumulative translation losses of foreign operations — sharehalder b 1,091 44
Redesignation of financial assets [4 88 (16)
Tax impact on redesignation of financial assets ¢ (20) 4
Total adjustment to accumulated other comprehensive income 1,159 32
Total adjustment to shareholders’ equity at transition to IFRS (579) 9
Total share capital and shareholders’ equity under IFRS 12,689 13,001
Reclassification of non-controlling interests for IFRS presentation u 147 -
Cumulative translation losses of foreign operations - participating account surplus b (26) -
Cumulative translation losses of foreign operations — participating account surplus b 26 -
Total IFRS adjustment to participating account surplus k 41 {9}
Total adjustment to participating account surplus and non-controthng interests 188 9}
Total equity $ 12,877 $ 13,012
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NOTES TC CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Reconcihation of consohdated earnings and comprehensive income from the previous CGAAP to [FRS

Comparative period
reported under CGAAP
for the year ended
December 31, 2010

Total comprehensive income under the previgus CGAAP

Adjustments for
Measurement adjustment for owner occuped and investment properties
Derecognition of deferred net realized gans

Unamortized vested past service costs and other employment benefits
Uncertain tax provistons

Change 1n recognition of DAC on investment contracts
Change In recagnition of DIR on investment contracts

Other adjustments

Total impact on operating earnings before tax and 0CI
Income tax effect related to the above

Total after-tax adjustments to net earnings

Other comprehensive income
Cumulative translation gains {losses) of foreign operations
Redesignation of financial assets
Tax impact on redesignation of financial assets

Total after-tax adjustments to comprehensive income

Total IFRS comprehensive income

$ 1006

9 (12)

on
h (10)
1 {22)

71
(53)

24)

(32)

{16)

32

$ 1,006
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Recongihations of IFRS Equity and Comprehensive Income {cont'd)

Reconciliation of the Consolidated Balance Sheets from the previous CGAAP to IFRS

Comparative
period reported Presentation Date of transitton

(in Canadian $ millons) under CGAAP Conversion and reclassification to IFRS
December 31 December 31, 2009 adjustments adjustments lanuary 1 2010
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,030 H] - S - $ 3030
Bonds 50,183 - - 50,183
Mortgage loans 15,033 - - 15,033
Stocks 5,904 - - 5,904
lavestment properties 2,964 (85} f (270) p 2,609
Loans to policyhalders 2,786 - - 2,786
Funds held by ceding insurers 10,839 - 145 q 10,984
Goodwill 5,270 - - 5,270
Intangible assets 1,538 - - 1,538
Derwvative finanaial instruments 893 - - 693
Owner occupied properties - 2 d 210 p 291
Fixed assets 9 - d - p N
Reinsurance assets - - 4,889 q 4,889
Other assets 2,686 (65) h 447 r 3,068
Deferred tax assets 67 (4) - 63
Segregated funds for the nisk of unithelders - - 67,805 t 67,805
Total assets $ 101,084 $ (133) $ 73286 § 174,237
Liabilities
Insurance contract habilities $ 82,99 H) (66) fg..5 $ 4516 q $ 87446
Investment contract liabiities - - 820 q.r 820
Debentures and other debt instruments 305 - - 305
Funds held under reinsurance contracts 613 - 145 q 758
Derivative financral instruments 188 - - 188
Other hablities 2,042 644  ah,,l - 2,686
Deferred tax habilitres 603 (46) 0 - 557
Repurchase agreements 17 - - 17
Deferred net realized gans 127 (127 g - -
Capital trust secunties 778 - - 778
Non-controlling Interests 147 - (147) u -
Investment and insurance contracts on account of uitholders - - 67,805 t 67,805
Total habilities 87,816 405 73,139 161,360
Equity
Participating account surplus

Accumulated surplus 2,016 41 k {(26) b 2,031

AOCI (L) (17) - 26 b g
Non-controlling interests - - 147 u 147
Share capital

Preferred shares 158 - - 158

Common shares 6,116 - - 6,116
Shareholder surplfus

Accumulated surplus 5,852 (1.12) - 4,140

AOCH (L) (1,068) 1,133 b.c.k - 65

Contrnbuted surplus 211 - - 2n
Total equity 13,268 (538)" 147 12,877
Total labilities and equity $ 101,084 $ {133) $ 73286 $ 174,237

* Total impact on equity of ${538) consists of $41 impact on participating account and smpact on non participating of ${579)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statements of Cash Flows

Under IFRS, the statements of cash flows will continue to be presented under the indirect method with imited presentation differences
of operating earnings being presented before tax and cash flows related to tax expense presented separately within operating cash
flows The cash flows reported under the previous CGAAP for operaung, financing, and investing activities have not been impacted by
the adoption of IFRS requirements

IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of IFRS Optional Exemptions

The Company has apphed IFRS 1 1n prepanng the annual consolhidated financial statements which requires
retrospective application of IFRS except for certain optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions provided n the Standard The
optional exemptions adopted by the Company and the mandatory exceptions that apply to the Company are described within
this transitional note

(a}) Employee Benefits Cumulative Unamortized Actuarlal Gains and Losses

The Company has elected to apply the exemption available to recogmze all cumulative unamortized actuarial gains and losses of
the Company’s defined benefit plans in equity upon transition to IFRS This adjustment, referred to as the ‘fresh start adjustment’,
decreased total equity by $220 before tax (decrease of $193 to shareholder accumulated surplus and $27 to participaung account
surplus) Subsequent to transiion, the Company will continue to use the corndor approach available under the present IAS 19,
Employee Benefits standard for deferring recognition of actuanal gains and lesses that reside within the cornidor

{b} Cumulative Translation Losses of Foreign Operations

The Company has elected to reset 1ts cumulative translation adjustment {CTA) account for all foreign operations to zero as of
January 1, 2010 Future gains or losses on disposal of any foreign operation will therefore exclude translation differences that arose
before January 1, 2010 The balance of the cumulative loss to be reclassified from AQOCI to shareholder accumulated surplus at
January 1, 2010 1s approximately $1,091 and the balance reclassified within participating account surplus s $26 at January 1, 2010

As a result of the foreign exchange revaluation of the transitional IFRS adjustments the total impact to CTA was an increase of $44
for the year ended December 31, 2010

(c} Redesignation of Flnancial Assets

The Company has elected to redesignate certain non-participating available for sale financial assets to the fair value through profit
or loss classification and certamn financial assets classified as held for trading under the previous CGAAP 10 available for sale The
redesignation will have no overall impact on the Company’s opening equity at transition but will result 1n a reciassification within
equity of $88 before tax (568 after-tax}) between accumulated surplus and AOCI (a decrease of $90 related to shareholder
accumulated surplus and an increase of $2 related to participating account surplus) For the year ended December 31, 2010, the
redesignation decreased net earnings by $12, net of tax

The financral assets carned at fair value in December 31, 2009 CGAAP consolidated financial statements and at transition to IFRS
are as follows

Unreahzed
gains
reclassifed
Far value te ADQ
January 1, 2010 January 1 2010

Financial assets redesignated to faw value through profit or loss 3 269 $ 15

Financial assets redesignated to available for sale 3 254 $ LE

{d) Fair Value as Deemed Cost for Owner Occupied Properties

The Company has elected to measure owner occupied properties at fair value as their deemed cost at the January 1, 2010 transition
date which has resuited 1n an increase to equity of $21 before tax (increases of $19 to shareholder accumulated surplus and $2 to
participating account surplus) Subsequent to this date, owner occupied properties wall be carried at amortized cost
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Reconciliahons of IFRS Equity and Comprehensive Income {cont'd}

(e)

Business Combinations

The Company has applied the IFRS 1 business combinations exemption and has not restated business combinations that took
place prior to the January 1, 2010 transition date which has resulted 1n no impact on opening figures The Company will apply
IFRS 3, Business Combinations prospectively for business combinations occurring on or after January 1, 2010

Changes in Accounting Policies Mandatory at Conversion to IFRS

Measurement and Recogmition Differences

()

(g)

(h)

)

)]

(k)

24

Measurement of Investment Properties and Owner Occupled Properties

Under the previous CGAAP, real estate 1s carried at cost net of wnte-downs and allowance far loss, plus a moving average market
value adjustment Under IFRS, real estate held for mvestment purposes 1s classified as investment property and Is measured at fair
value This measurement change has increased equity at January 1, 2010 by $119 before tax (increase of $114 to shareholder
accumulated surplus and $5 to participating account surpius) and increased the Consolidated Statement of Earnings, offset by the
change 1n accounting for owner accupied propertes by $1 for the year ended December 31, 2010

Derecognition of Deferred Net Realized Gains

Under the previous CGAAP, net realized gains and losses associated with the sale of real estate were deferred and included 1n
deferred net realized gamns on the Consolidated Balance Sheets These deferred net realized gamns and losses were amoruzed to
income at a rate of 3% per quarter on a dechming balance basis Under IFRS, gains and losses associated with the sale of investment
propernes are immediately recognized in income and consequently the balance of the unrecognized net deferred realized gans
was recognized mn equuty at transition This recogmition change has increased equity at January 1, 2010 by $104 before tax (increase
of $41 1n shareholder accumulated surplus and $63 1n participating account surplus) and decreased net earmngs by $12 for the
year ended December 31, 2010

Unamaortized Vested Past Service Costs and Other Employment Benefits

Previous CGAAP and [FRS differ 1n their treatment of other employee benefits including the timing of recognition of unamortized
vested past service costs and certain service awards The change in recogrution for these vested past service costs and other
employee benefits under IFRS has increased equity at January 1, 2010 by $120 before tax (increased by $102 in shareholder
accumulated surplus and $18 in partucipating account surplus) and decreased net earnings before tax by $10 for the year ended
December 31, 2010

Uncertain Income Tax Provisions

The difference 1n the recogmuon and measurement of uncertain income tax provisions between the previcus CGAAP and IFRS has
decreased equty at January 1, 2010 by $230 (decreased by $221 1n shareholder accumulated surplus and $9 1n partucipating
account surplus) and decreased net earnings by $22 for the year ended December 31, 2010

Deferred Acquisition Costs and Deferred Income Reserves on Investment Contracts

Under the previous CGAAP, DAC relating to policyholder habihities were deferred in policy habihnes and amoruzed into
consolidated net earnings over the anucipated period of benefit Under IFRS, DAC on policyholder habilities reclassified as
investment contract abilities are no longer deferred and amortized into earmngs over the anticipated penod of benefit but rather
recogmzed through earnings in the period incurred for those costs nat incremental to 1ssuing the contract Inaddition to DAC, DIR
related to fee income on Investment contracts will also be deferred and recogmzed over the term of the contract The change in
measurement for both DAC and DIR has decreased equity at January 1, 2010 by $114 and $357 before tax and increased net
earnings by $18 for the year ended December 31, 2010

Other Adjustments

In addition to the items described above, several other items required adjustments due to the transition from the previous CGAAP
te [FRS which resulted 1n measurement changes The adjustments resulted n a decrease to opening equity at January 1, 2010 of $6
and an increase to net earnings of $1 for the year ended December 31, 2010

Also ncluded 1n the above adjustments 1s the related impact of the IFRS adjustments atiributed to the participating account
surplus The total impact to the participating account resulted 1n an increase of $41 at transition and a decrease of $9 for the year
ended December 31, 2010
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m

{m

(n}

(o)

—

Tax Impact of IFRS Adjustments

The tax effect of the above adjustments, excluding the uncertain tax provisions, 1s an mcrease to income tax liabities of $45 at
transition (an increase of $56 to shareholder accumulated surplus and a decrease of $11 to participating account surplus) and a
decrease of $8 for the year ended December 31, 2010

Goodwill and Intangible Asset Measurement and Impairment Testing

Goodwill and intangtble assets under IFRS are measured using the cost model, based on the recoverable amount which 1s the
greater of the value-in-use and fair value less cost to sell The recoverable amount calculated under IFRS approximates the
previous CGAAP carrying value at January 1, 2010 and therefore no transitional adjustment was required

At each reporting date, the Company reviews goodwill and intangible assets for indicators of impairment or reversals of
mmpairment on the intangible assets In the event that certain conditions have been met, the Company 13 required to reverse the
impairment charge, or a portion thereof, on intangible assets

Under the previous CGAAF, goodwill 1s tested for impairment by comparing the fair value of the reporting unit to which the
goodwill 1s associated with 1ts carrying value Under IFRS, the carrying value of goodwill 1s tested for impairment by reference to
the CGU in which goodwill 1s associated A CGU represents the lowest level in which goodwill 1s monitored for internal reporting
purposes This change 1n impairment testing had no impact on the Company's financial statements at transiiion

Recognition of Contingent Liabilities
Under the previous CGAAP, contingent habilittes are recognized 1f 1t 1s ‘hkely’ whereas under IFRS contingent habilities are

recogmzed 1f it 15 ‘probable’ that a loss will ulzmately be incurred in relation to the matter The change 1n the recognition threshold
has not resulted in additional provisions being recognized at January 1, 2010

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
Previous CGAAP limited the amount of future iIncome tax assets recogmzed to the amount that 1s ‘more likely than not’ to be
reahzed whereas IFRS recognizes a deferred tax asset 1f 1t 1s more likely than not that sufficient future taxable profit will be

available to recover the asset The change in measurement criteria has not impacted consolidated net earnings and equity at
January 1, 2010

Presentation and Classification Differences

(p) Presentation of Real Estate Properties

(q)

{r)

Properties classified as real estate under the previous CGAAP are reclassified to investment properties of $2,609 and owner
occupled properties of $270 1n the Consolidated Balance Sheets under IFRS

Presentation of Reinsurance Accounts

Remnsurance accounts will be presented on a gross basis on the Consclidated Balance Sheets totaling $4,889 of reinsurance assets
with an offsetting increase to mnsurance and investment contract liabihties with no tmpact to equity Funds withheld asset and
hability accounts have also been adjusted for gross presentation of $145 Gross presentation of the reinsurance revenue and
expenses 1s also required within the Consolidated Statements of Earnings

Reclassification of Deferred Acquisition Costs

The DAC of $447 recogmzed on investment contracts that was previously included within policy habilities under the previous
CGAAP has been reclassified to other assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets
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3 Reconcliations of IFRS Equity and Comprehensive Income {cont’d)

(s)

()

(u)

26

Presentation of Insurance and Investment Contract Liabilities

Under the previous CGAAP, all pohceyholder related hiabihties are classified as actuarial habihies and valued using CALM Under
1ERS 4, contracts are classified and measured depending on the existence of significant insurance risk If sigmficant insurance risk
exists, the contract 1s classified as an insurance centract and IFRS permits the Company to continue with measuring insurance
contract llabilines using CALM 1f significant insurance risk does not exist, then the contract 1s classified as an investment contract
and measured at either fair value or amortized cost The change 1n reclassification has had no impact on equuty at January 1, 2010
or consohdated earmings and comprehensive income at December 31, 2011

The reconciled amount of pohcy habihities under the previous CGAAP to msurance and mvestment contract liabilities under IFRS
at transition 1s as follows

Policy habilities under CGAAP at December 31, 2009 comprises

Actuanal habilities $ 78923
Provision for claims 1,203
Provision for pelicyholder dividends 569
Provision for experience rating refunds 168
Policyholder funds 2,133
$ 82,99

IFRS conversion adjustments
Remeasurement of DAC 114
Fair value of investment properties backing liabilities (203)
Fair value adjustment of deferred net realized gains 23
Sub-total — IFRS conversion adjustments (66)

IFRS reclassification adjustments

DAC to other assets 447
Reinsurance assets offset by reinsurance liabihties 4,889
Sub-total — IFRS reclassificatron adjustments 5336
Total insurance and investment contract hiabihties under iFRS at January 1, 2010 $ 88,266

Attributable to
Insurance contract habilities $ 87,446
Investment contract habnlities 3 820

Presentation of Segregated Funds on the Consolidated Balance Sheets

The assets and habilities of the segregated funds, totaling $67 8 bilhien at January 1, 2010, will be included at fair value on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets as a line item within both assets and habilites under I[FRS There was ne measurement change
impacting equity

Presentation of Non-Controlling Interests within Equity

Under the previous CGAAP, non-controlling interests were presented 1n the mezzanine between liabilities and equity whereas
under IFRS non-controlling interest is presented within the equity section of the Consolidated Balance Sheets The reclassification
of non-controlling mterests from habilities of $147 relates to the preferred shares 1ssued by subsidianes
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v)

Future Accounting Policies

In addition, the Company may be impacted in the future by the IFRS set out 1n the following table

Rewvised standard

Summary ¢f proposed changes

IFRS 4 ~ Insurance Contracts

The IASB 1ssued an expasure draft proposing changes to the accounting standard for insurance contracts in July 2010 The proposal would
require an Insurer to measure insurance llabilitses using a model focusing on the ameount, timing, and uncertainty of future cash flows
associated with fulfilling 1ts insurance contracts This is vastly different from the connection between insurance assets and liabilities
considered under CALM and may cause significant volatility in the results of the Company The expasure draft also proposes changes to
the presentation and disclosure within the financial statements

The Company will continue to measure insurance contract habrities using CALM until such time when a new 1FRS for insurance contract
measurement Is 1ssued A final standard 1s not expected 1o be implemented for several years, the Company continues to actively monitor
developments in this area

tFRS 9 — Fnancial Instruments

The IASB tentatively approved the adoption of the praposed new IFRS 9, Frnancial Instruments standard to be effective January 1, 2015

The new standard requires all financial assets to be classified on initial recogmition at amortized cost or fair value while eimnating the
existing categonies of avallable for sale, held to matunty, and loans and recevables

The new standard also requires
« embedded denwvatives 10 be assessed for classification together with ther financial asset host,
* 3 single expected loss impairment methoad be used for financial assets, and
» amendments to the critena for hedge accounting and measunng effectiveness

The full impact of {FRS 9 on the Company will be evaluated after the remaining stages of the 1ASB's praject to replace IAS 39, Financial
Instruments - impanment methodology hedge accounting and asset and hability offsetuing — are finalized The Company continues to
actively monitor devefopments in this area

IFRS 10 — Consolidated
financial Statements,

IFRS 11 — Joint Arrangements,
IFRS 12 — Disclosure of Interests
n Cther Entities

Effective January 1 2013, the Company plans to adopt IFRS 10, Consoldated Fingncial Statements, IFRS 11, Joint Arrangements, and
IFRS 12, Dsclosure of interests m Other Entitres for the presentanion and preparation of its consolidated financial statements

IFRS *0, Consofidated Financial Statements uses consolidated principles based on a revised definition of control The definition of contral 15
dependent on the power of the investor to direct the actvities of the investee, the ability of the investor to denve vanable benefits from
its holdings in the investee, and a direct link betwaen the power to direct activities and receve benefits

IFRS 11, Jont Amangements separates jaintly controlled entrties between joint operations and joint ventures The standard has eliminated
the option of using proporthionate consolidation for accounting in the interests (n joInt ventures, now requining an entity to use the equity
method of actounting for interests in joint veniures

IFRS 12, Drsclosure of Interests 1n Other Entities proposes new disclosure requirermnents far the interest an entity has in subsidianes, jont
arrangements, associates, and structured entities The standard requires enhanced disclosure including how control was determined and
any restrictions that might exist on consalidated assets and labilives presented within the financial statements

The Company 1s currently evaluating the impact of the abave standards on its cansolidanen procedures and disclosure in preparation of
the January 1, 2013 transition date

IFRS 13 - fair Valve
Measurement

Effectve January 1, 2013, the Company will adopt the guidance 1n IFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement for the measurement and disclosure
of assets and liabilities held at far value The standard refines the measurement and disclosure requirements and aims to achieve
consistency with other siandard setters 10 improve the visibihty to financial statement users

The Company 1s currently evaluating the impact this standard wili have on its financial statements when it becomes effective
January 1, 2013

1AS 1 — Presentation of

Effective on January 1, 2013, the Company will adopt the guidance in the amended (A5 1, Presentation of Financial Statements The

Fnancia! Statements amended standard includes requirements that OCI be classified by nature and grouped between those 1tems that will be redlassified
subsequently to profit or loss {(when specific conditions are met) and those that will not be reclassified Other amendments include
changes to discontinued operations and overall financial statement presentatien
The Company Is evaluating the impact this standard will have on the presentation of its financial statements

IAS 17 — Leases The IASB 1ssued an exposure draft proposing a new accounting madel for leases where bath lessees and lessors would record the assets

and fiabtlies on the balance sheet at the present value of the lease payments ansing from all lease contracts The new classification
would be the nght-of-use madel, replacing the operating and finance lease accounting models that currently exist

The full tmpact of adeption of the proposed changes will be determined cnce the final lease standard 1 1ssued, whichis proposed to be
n 2012

IAS 19 — Empioyee Benefits

The tASB published an amended version of this standard in June 2011 that ehminates the corndor approach for actuanal gains and losses
resulting in those gamns and losses being recognized immediately through OCI while the net pension asset or Liability would reflect the
full funded status of the plan on the Consolidated Balance Sheets Further, the standard includes changes ta how the defined benefit
obhigatron and the fav value of the plan assets would be presented within the financial statements of an entity

The Company will continue to use the corndor method unul January 1, 2013 when the revised 1AS for employee benefits
becomes effective
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5 Portfolio Investments (cont'd}

201 2010

Carrying value, beginming of year 3 330 $ 328
Equity method earnings 27 21
Dividends (19) {19)
Carrying value, end of year $ 338 $ 330
Share of equity, end of year $ 157 $ 152
Fair value, end of year $ 406 $ 399

The Company and IGM both have a year-end reporting date of December 31 and as a consequence, the Company reports [GM's
financial information by estumating the amount of income attributable to the Company, based on prior quarter information as well
as consensus expectations, to complete equity accounting The difference between actual and esttmated results 1s reflected 1n the

subsequent quarter and 1s not matenal to the Company’s financial statements

IGM's financial information as at December 31, 2011 can be obtained 1n 1ts publicly available information

(d) Included 1n portfolio investments are the following

(1) Carrying amecunt of impaired investments

December 31 December 31 lanuary 1
20m 010 010
Impaired amounts by type @
Fair value through prefit or loss $ 59 ) 105 $ 102
Available for sale 19 22 21
Loans and recevables a7 53 83
Total % 125 $ 180 3 206

Pravisions on loans and recewvables were $19 at Dacember 31 2011 $21 at December 31 2010 and $32 at January 1 2010

{1) Excludes amounts i funds held by ceding nsurers of nil at December 31 2041 $11 at December 31 2010 and $6 at January 1 2010

(n) The allowance for credit losses and changes n the allowance for credit losses related to investments classified as loans and

recervables are as follows

2011 2010
Mortgage Morigage
Bands loans Total Bonds loans Total

Balance, begitning of year $ 9 $ 12 $ 21 $ 11 $ 21 $ 32
Net provision (recovery) for credit losses — in year (3) 7 4 (2) 2 -
Wnite-offs, net of recovenes (4) (1 (5} - N 7}
Other {including foresgn exchange rate changes) - m (1) - {4} {4)
Balance, end of year $ 2 % 17 $ 19 5 9 $ 12 $ 21

The allowance for credit losses 1s supplemented by the provision for future credit losses included in insurance

contract lhabilhities

(m) The Company holds investments with restructured terms or which have been exchanged for securities with amended terms

These investments are performing according to their new terms Their carrying value 15 as follows

December 31 December 31 January 1
01 2010 2010
Bands $ - $ 7 H 15
Bonds with equity conversion features 119 150 169
Mortgages 17 18 1
$ 136 $ 175 -] 185
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(e) Netmvestment income comprises the following

(f)

2011
Mertgage Investment
Bonds loans Stocks properties Other Total
Regular net mvestment income
Investment income earned $ 2,982 $ 757 $ 181 $ 254 % 195 $ 4,36%
Net realized gans (losses) (avaifable for sale) B2 - 2 - - B84
Net realized gans (losses) (other classifications) 7 14 - - - 21
Net recovery (provision) for credit losses
floans and receivables) 3 N - - - {4)
Other income and expenses - - - (65} {53) (118)
3,074 164 183 189 142 4,352
Changes in fair value on fair value through profit
or loss assets
Net realized/unrealized gains (losses)
(classified fawr value through profit or joss} 66 - - - - 66
Net realizedfunrealized gains (losses)
(designated fair value through profit or loss) 3,744 - (271) 143 113 3,729
3,810 - (271) 143 113 3,795
Net investment income $ 6,884 $ 764 $ (88) $ 332 $ 255 $ 8,147
2010
Mortgage Investment
Bonds loans Stocks properties Other Total
Regular net investment income
Investment income earned $ 2,987 $ 773 $ 198 $ 241 5 348 $ 4,547
Net reahized gains (losses) {ava/fabie for sale) 63 - (2) - - 61
Net realized gains (losses) (other classifications) 8 16 - - - 24
Net recovery (prowision) for credit losses
(foans and receivables) 2 1) - - - 1
Other income and expenses - - - (64) (58) {122}
3,060 788 196 177 290 4,511
Changes in fair value on fair value through profit
or loss assets
Net realized/unrealized gains (losses)
(classified fair value through profit or loss) 34 - - - - 34
Net reahzed/unrealized gains (losses)
(designated fair value through profit or loss) 2,387 - 602 162 12 3,163
2421 - 602 162 12 3.197
Net investment income $ 5481 5 788 $ 798 3 339 3 302 $ 7,708

Investment income earned compnses income from mvestments that are classified as available for sale, loans and receivables and
classified or designated as fair value through profit or loss Investment income from bonds and mortgages includes interest
income and premium and discount amortization Income from stocks includes dividends and equity income from the investment
in IGM Investment properties income 1ncludes rental income earned on investment properties, ground rent income earned on
leased and sub-leased land, fee recoveries, lease cancellation income, and interest and other investment income earned on
investment properties

The carrying value of investment properties and changes in the carrying value of investment properties are as follows

2011 2010
Balance, begmning of year $ 2,953 $  2,60%
Addit:ons 159 353
Change In fair value through profit or loss 143 162
Disposal (97) (16)
Foreign exchange rate changes 40 (155}
Balance, end of year $ 3,198 § 2953
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6 Funds Held by Ceding Insurers

Included in funds held by ceding insurers of $9,923 at December 31, 2011 ($9,856 at December 31, 2010 and $10,984 at January 1, 2010}
15 an agreement with Standard Life Assurance Limited (Standard Life) During 2008, Canada Life International Re Limited (CLIRE), the
Company's indirect wholly-owned Irish reinsurance subsidiary, signed an agreement with Standard Life, a U K based provider of Iife,
pension and investment products, to assume by way of Indemnity reinsurance, a large block of payout annuities Under the agreement,
CLIRE 15 required to put amounts on depostt with Standard Life and CLIRE has assumed the credit risk on the portfolio of assets
included 1n the amounts on deposit These amounts on deposit are included 1n funds held by ceding insurers on the Consclidated
Balance Sheets Income and expenses ansing from the agreement are included 1n net investment income on the Consolidated
Statements of Earnings (see note 5)

At December 31, 2011 CLIRE had amounts on deposit of $9,411 ($9,333 at December 31, 2010 and $10,329 at January 1, 2010) The
details of the funds on deposit and related credit risk on the funds are as follows

{a) Carrying values and estimated market values

December 31, 2011 December 31 2010 January 1 2010

Carrying Market Carmying Market Camying Market

value value value value value value
Cash and cash equivalents $ 49 5 49 S 138 ) 138 ) 25 H) 25
Bonds 9,182 9,182 9,031 9,031 10,121 10121
Other assets 180 180 164 164 183 183
$ 941 $ 941 $ 9333 $ 9333 $ 10,329 $ 10,329

Supporting :

Remnsurance liabilities 9,082 9,082 8,990 8,990 9,999 9,999
Surplus 329 329 343 343 330 330

$ 9411 $ 9411 $ 9,333 9333 § 10,329 § 10329

{b) Included in the amounts on deposit are impaired 1nvestments with a carrying amount of nil (311 at December 31, 2010 and $6 at
January 1, 2010} that are net of impairments of ml ($17 at December 31, 2010 and $4 at January 1, 2010)

(¢) The following table provides details of the carrying value of bonds included 1n the funds on deposit by industry sector

December 31 December 31 Jarwary 1
2011 2010 2010
Bonds 1ssued or guaranteed by
Provincial, state, and municipal governments $ 88 $ 37 ] 4
Other foreign governments 3,074 3.250 3,913
Government related 369 252 292
Supranationals 128 107 115
Asset-backed secunties 242 244 242
Residential mortgage backed secunities 73 54 81
Banks 1,807 2,040 2,232
Other financial mstitutions 747 652 681
Basic maternials 21 18 16
Communications 239 4 278
Consumer products 404 464 217
Industnal products/services 26 14 13
Natural resources 220 147 218
Real estate E:3] 373 393
Transportation 17 94 97
Utihties 1,135 950 962
Miscellaneous 11 93 30
Total bands $ 9,182 $ 9031 $ 1021
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(d) Asset qualty

7

December 31 December 31 January 1

Bond Portfolio Quality 2011 2010 2010

AAA $ 3,520 $ 3542 $ 4318
AA 1,819 1,725 1,843
A 3,116 3,019 3,181
BBB 468 396 409
BB and lower 259 349 370
Total bonds $ 9,182 $ 903 3 1021

Financial Instrument Risk Management

The Company has policies relating to the identification, measurement, momtoring, mitigating, and controlling of nisks associated with
financial instruments The key risks related to financial instruments are credit risk, hquudity nsk and market rnisk (currency, interest rate
and equity)

The following sections describe how the Company manages each of these nsks

(a)

Credit Risk
Credit nisk 1s the risk of financial loss resulting from the failure of debtors making payments when due
The following policies and procedures are 1n place to manage this risk

* [nvestment guidelines are 1n place that require only the purchase of investment-grade assets and minimize undue concentration
of assets In any single geographic area, industry and company

+ Investment guidelines spectfy mimmum and maximum limzits for each asset class Credit ratings are deterruned by recognized
external credit rating agencies and/or internal credit review

* Investment guidelines also specify collateral requirements

» Portfolios are monitored conunuously, and reviewed regularly with the Board of Directors or the Investment Commuttee of the
Board of Directors

* Credit risk associated with denivative instruments 1s evaluated quarterly based on conditions that existed at the balance sheet
date, using practices that are at least as conservative as those recommended by regulators

* The Company 1s exposed to credit risk relating to premiums due from policyholders duning the grace period specified by the
insurance policy or until the policy 1s paid up or terminated Commussions paid to agents and brokers are netted against amounts
recewvable, if any

* Remnsurance 1s placed with counterparties that have a good credit rating and concentranion of credit nisk 1s managed by following
policy guidelines set each year by the Board of Directors Management continuously monitors and performs an assessment of
creditworthiness of reinsurers

(1) Maximum Exposure to Credit Risk

The following table summarnizes the Company's maximum exposure to credit risk related to financial instruments The
maximum credit exposure 1s the carrying value of the asset net of any allowances for losses

December 31 Pecember 31 January 1
2011 000 2010
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,855 $ 1557 $ 3,030
Bonds
Fair value through profit or loss 49,000 44,570 41,629
| Avallable for sale 5,041 4,258 2,474
Loans and recevables 6,440 6,173 6,080
Mortgage loans 14,849 14,393 15,033
Loans to policyholders 2,858 2,808 2,786
Funds held by ceding insurers 9,923 9,856 10,984
Reinsurance assets 4,046 4,433 4,889
Other financial assets 2,442 2,845 2,762
Denivative assets 927 930 693
’ Total balance sheet maximum credit exposure $ 97.381 $ 91,823 $ 90,360
{ (1) Incledes 39 411 {$9 333 at December 31 2010 and $10 329 at January 1 20+10) of funds held by ceding insurers where the Company retains the credit nsk of the assets supporting the hiabilities
ceded (see nete 6)
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7 Financial Instrument Risk Management {cont'd}

34

(1)

Credit risk is also mmtigated by entering into collateral agreements The amount and type of collateral required depends on an
assessment of the credit risk of the counterparty Guidelines are implemented regarding the acceptability of types of collateral
and the valuation parameters Management monitors the value of the collateral, requests additional collateral when needed
and performs an impairment valuation when applicable The Company has $10 of collateral recerved in 2011 ($16 of collateral
received at December 31, 2010 and $35 of collateral received at January 1, 2010) relating to derivative assets

Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentrations of credit nisk arise from exposures to a single debtor, a group of related debtors or groups of debtors that have
sumilar credit risk characterisucs in that they operate 1n the same geographic region or mn sumilar industries The
charactenistics are similar in that changes i economic or pelitical environments may unpact their ability to meet obligations
as they come due

The following table provides detauls of the carrying value of bonds by industry sector and geographic distnbution
December 31, 2011

Europef
Canada Remnsurance United States Tatal
Bonds 1ssued or guaranteed by
Canadian federal government $ 4,328 $ a1 $ 2 $ 43N
Provinctal, state, and municipal governments 5,430 53 71 6,554
U S Treasury and other US agencies 27 963 516 1,755
Other foreign governments 185 8,216 25 8,426
Government related 1,293 955 - 2,248
Supranationals 443 2Mn 12 666
Asset-backed securities 2,696 794 478 3,968
Residential mortgage backed securities 26 146 79 25
Banks 2,168 1,858 34 4,060
Other financial institutions 855 1,615 121 2,591
Basic materials 233 210 98 541
Communications 508 501 33 1,042
Consumer products 1,848 1,759 203 3,810
Industnal preductsiservices 695 212 170 1,077
Natural resources 1,127 550 Fal 1,748
Real estate 608 1,610 - 2,218
Transportation 1,721 624 a0 2,435
Utilities 3,792 3,148 470 7,410
Miscellaneous 2,024 266 43 2,333
Total long term bonds 31,251 23,737 2,516 57,504
Short term bonds 2,386 558 33 2,977

$ 33,637 $ 24,295 $ 2549 $ 60,481
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December 31, 2010

Europe/
Canada Reinsurance Uniated States Total

Bonds issued or guaranteed by
Canadian federal government $ 3,548 $ 31 ) - $ 3579
Provincial, state, and municipal governments 5,619 61 61 5741
US Treasury and other US agencies 335 932 517 1,784
Other foreign governments 216 7617 1 7.844
Government related 1,057 946 - 2,003
Surpranationals 3 24 1" 616
Asset-backed securities 2,729 832 445 4,006
Residential mortgage backed securities 25 m 87 223
Banks 2,183 1,993 34 4,210
Other financial institutions 1,056 1,470 123 2,649
Basic materals 202 177 84 463
Communications 589 477 3 1,097
Consumer products 1,608 1,490 177 3,275
Industnal products/services 543 181 21 845
Natural resources 997 419 70 1,486
Real estate 422 1,400 - 1,822
Transportation 1,557 464 17 2,098
Utihittes 3,266 2,788 417 6,471
Miscellaneous 1,728 222 36 1,986
Total long term bonds 28,061 21,835 2,302 52,198
Short term bonds 2,064 726 13 2,803
$ 30125 $ 22,561 $ 2315 $ 55001

January 1 2010
Eurape/
Canada Rewnsurance United States Total

Bonds ssued or guaranteed by
Canadian federal government $ 2,264 $ 14 $ - $ 2278
Provinaial, state, and municipal governments 4,917 58 26 2,001
U'S Treasury and other U5 agencies 240 758 447 1,445
Other foreign governments 212 6,652 - 6,864
Government related 937 916 - 1,853
Supranationals 516 436 4 956
Asset-backed secunities 2,636 842 463 3,941
Residential mortgage backed secunties 46 60 86 192
Banks 2,201 2,299 40 4,540
Other financial institutions 1,021 1,507 127 2,655
Basic matenials 151 198 12 a1
Communications 598 473 38 1.109
Consumer products 1,384 1,664 218 3,266
industnal producis/sernces 516 206 119 841
Natural resources 1,000 577 78 1.655
Real estate 559 1,216 - 1,775
Transportation 1,414 495 81 1,990
Utilities 3,008 2,694 377 6,079
Miscellaneous 1,489 182 39 1,710
Total long term bonds 25,109 21,247 2,215 48,571
Short term bonds 1,475 137 - 1,612
$ 26,584 $ 21,384 $ 2215 $ 50,183
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7 Financial Instrument Risk Management (cont'd)
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(11)

* The Company uses financtal measures such as constant currency calculations to montor the effect of currency translation
fluctuations

« Investments are normally made in the same currency as the habilitnes supported by those investments Segmented
Investment Guidelines include maximum tolerances for unhedged currency mismatch exposures

« Foreign currency assets acquired to back habihities are normally converted back to the currency of the habihty using foreign
exchange contracts

* A 10% weakening of the Canadian dollar against foreign currencies would be expected to increase non-participating
insurance and investment contract liabilities and their supporting assets by approximately the same amount resulting in an
immatenal change to net earnings A 10% strengthening of the Canadian dollar against foreign currencies would be
expected to decrease non-participating msurance and investment contract habibnes and theirr supporting assets by
approximately the same amount resulting 1in an immaterial change 1n net earnings

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate nisk exists 1f asset and lability cash flows are not closely matched and interest rates change causing a difference
in value between the asset and hiability The following policies and procedures are in place to miugate the Company's
exposure to interest rate risk

+ The Company utilizes a formal process for managing the matching of assets and habilities This involves grouping general
fund assets and habihities into segments Assets in each segment are managed in relation to the habilities in the segment

» Interest rate risk 1s managed by investing mn assets that are suitable for the products sold

* Where these products have benefit or expense payments that are dependent on inflation (inflation-indexed annuities,
pensions and disability claims) the Company generally invests n real return instruments to hedge 1ts real dollar hability
cash flows Some protection against changes in the inflation index 1s achieved as any related change 1n the fair value of the
assets will be largely offset by a similar change 1n the fair value of the habilities

* For products with fixed and highly predictable benefit payments, investments are made 1n fixed income assets or real estate
whose cash flows closely match the liability product cash flows Where assets are not available ro match certain period cash
flows such as long-tail cash flows a portien of these are invested 1n equities and the rest are duranon matched Hedging
mstruments are employed where necessary when there 1s a lack of switable permanent investments to mimmize loss
exposure to interest rate changes To the extent these cash flows are matched, protection against interest rate change 15
achieved and any change n the fair value of the assets will be offset by a sumilar change in the fair value of the habihues

+ For products with less predictable iming of benefit payments, investments are made 1n fixed income assets with cash flows
of a shorter duration than the anticipated timing of benefit payments, or equities as described below

» The risk associated with the mismatch 1n portfolio duration and cash flow, asset prepayment exposure and the pace of asset
acquusition are quantified and reviewed regularly

Projected cash flows from the current assets and habihties are used 1in CALM to determine insurance contract habilities
Valuation assumptiocns have been made regarding rates of returns on supporting assets, fixed income, equity and inflation
The valuation assumptions use best estimates of future reinvestment rates and inflation assumptions with an assumed
correlanon together with margins for adverse deviatien set in accordance with professional standards These margins are
necessary to provide for possibilities of misestunation and/or future detertoration 1n the best estimate assumptions and
provide reasonable assurance that insurance contract habiliies cover a range of posstble outcomes Margins are reviewed
periodically for continued appropriateness

Projected cash flows from fixed income assets used n actuarial calculations are reduced to provide for potential asset default
losses The net effecuve yield rate reduction averaged 0 18% (0 20% 1n 2010} The calculation for future credit losses on assets
15 based on the credit quality of the underlying asset portfolio

Testing under several interest rate scenarios {including increasing and decreasing rates) 1s done to assess reinvestment nsk

One way of measuring the interest rate risk associated with this assumption 1s to determune the effect on the insurance and

investment contract hiabihties impacting the shareholder earnings of the Company of a 1% immediate parallel shift in the

yield curve These interest rate changes will impact the projected cash flows

» The effect of an immediate 1% parallel increase in the yield curve would be to decrease these insurance and investment
contract lhiabilities by approximately $149 causing an increase in net earnings of approximately $102

« The effect of an immediate 1% parallel decrease in the yield curve would be to increase these insurance and investment
contract liabilities by approximately $579 causing a decrease in net earnings of approximately $413

In addition to above, if this change i the yield curve persisted for an extended period the range of the tested scenarios might
change The effect of an immediate 1% parallel decrease or mcrease mn the yield curve persisung for a year would have
immaternal additional effecis on the reported insurance and investment contract hability
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{111) Equity Risk

(v)

Equity nisk s the uncertarnty associated with the valuation of assets arsing from changes in equity markets To mitigate price
sk, the Company has investment policy gmdelines 1n place that provide for prudent investment in equity markets within
clearly defined limits The nisks associated with segregated fund guarantees have been mitigated through a hedging program
for lifenme Guaranteed Mimimum Withdrawal Benefit guarantees (GMWB) using equity futures, currency forwards, and
interest rate derivatives For policies with segregated fund guarantees, the Company generally determines insurance contract
habilines at a conditional tail expectation of 75 (CTE75) level

Some msurance and investment contract llabilities are supported by investment properties, common stocks and private
equities, for example segregated fund products and products with long-tail cash flows Generally these iabihties will fluctuate
in hine with equity market values There will be additional 1mpacts on these habilities as equity market values fluctuate A 10%
increase 1n equity markets would be expected to addinonally decrease non-participating insurance and investment contract
habihities by approximately $26 causing an increase 1n net earnings of approximately $21 A 10% decrease 1 equity markets
would be expected to additionally increase non-participating insurance and investment contract liabilities by approximately
$76 causing a decrease 1n net earnings of approximately $57
The best esumate return assumptions for equities are primarily based on long-term historical averages Changes 1n the
current market could result in changes to these assumptions and will impact beth asset and hability cash flows A 1% increase
in the best esimate assumption would be expected to decrease non-parucipating insurance contract habilies by
approximately $389 causing an increase in net earnings of approximately $292 A 1% decrease in the best esimate assumption
would be expected to increase non-participating insurance contract habiliues by approximately $423 causing a decrease n
net earnings of approximately $316
Caution Related to Risk Sensitivities
In this document we have provided estimates of sensitivities and risk exposure measures for certain risks These include the
sensitivity due to specific changes 1n interest rate levels projected and market prices as at the valuation date Actual results
can differ significantly from these estimates for a vanety of reasons including
* Assessment of the circumstances that led to the scenario may lead to changes in (re)investment approaches and interest rate
scenarios considered,

* Changes 1n actuarial, investment return and future investment activity assumptions,
* Actual expenience differing from the assumptions,

» Changes 1n business mix, effective tax rates and other market factors,

* Interactions among these factors and assumptions when more than one changes, and
« The general hmitations of our internal models

For these reasons, the sensitivities should only be viewed as directional estimates of the underlying sensitivities for the
respective factors based on the assumptions outhined below Given the nature of these calculations, we cannot provide
assurance that the actual impact on net earnings attributed to shareholders will be as indicated
Segregated funds guaranteed exposure
The Company offers retail segregated fund products, uninzed with profits (UWP} products and vanable annunty products that
provide for certain guarantees that are tied to the market values of the investment funds A significant decline in the market
value of these funds could increase the Company’s labiity exposure for providing these guarantees The Company’s exposure
to these guarantees at the balance sheet date was
December 31, 2011
Investment deficency by benefit type

Market value Income Matunty Death Total*
Canada $ 22,883 b - $ 42 $ 301 $ 304
United States 972 640 - 40 680
Europe 2.214 1 21 134 134
Total $ 26,069 $ 641 $ 163 $ 475 $ 1,118

December 31 2010
Investrnent deficency by benefit type

Market value Income Maturity Death Total*
Canada $ 23,324 $ - $ 24 S 135 5 137
United States 1,140 342 - 42 383
Europe 2,095 - 118 19 119
Total $ 26,559 $ 342 5 142 $ 296 S 639

* A policy can only recewve a payout from one of the three trigger events (income election maturity or death} Total deficiency measures the poini-+n tme exposure assuming the most castly ngger
event for each policy occurred on December 31, 2011 and December 31 2010
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8 Fimancial Instrument Fair Value Measurement

In accordance with IFRS 7, Financial Instruments — Disclosures, the Company’s assets and habihities recorded at fair value have been
categonized based upon the following fair value hierarchy

Level 1 inputs utihize observable, quoted prices (unadjusted) 1n active markets for i1dentical assets or habilities that the Company has
the ability to access Financial assets and habihties utihizing Level 1 inputs include actively exchange traded equity securnities and
mtitual and segregated funds which have available prices 1n an active market with no redemption restrictions

Level 2 mputs utilize other than quoted prices included n Level 1 that are observable for the asset or hability, either directly or
indirectly Level 2 inputs include quoted prices for similar assets and habilities in active markets, and inputs other than quoted prices
that are abservable for the asset or hiability, such as interest rates and yield curves that are observable at commonly quoted intervals
The fair values for some Level 2 securities were obtained from a pricing service The pricing service inputs include, but are not mited
to, benchmark yields, reported trades, broker/dealer quotes, 1ssuer spreads, two-sided markets, benchmark securities, offers and
reference data Level 2 secunties include those priced using a matrix which 1s based on credit quahity and average hfe, government and
agency securiies, restricted stock, some private bonds and equities, most investment-grade and high-yield corporate bonds, most
asset-backed securities (ABS) and most over-the-counter dervatives

Level 3 inputs are unobservable and include situations where there 1s little, 1f any, market activity for the asset or hability The prices of
the majority of Level 3 securities were obtained from single broker quotes and internal pncing models Financial assets and habilities
unlizing Levet 3 inputs include certain bonds, certain ABS, and some private equities and investments in mutual and segregated funds
where there are redempuion restrictions and certain over the counter derivatives

In certain cases, the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy In such cases, the ievel In
the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement in 1ts entirety falls has been determined based on the lowest level
input that 1s sigmificant to the fair value measurement in its entirety The Company's assessment of the significance of a particular input
to the fair value measurement 1n its entirety requires judgment and considers factors specific to the asset or hability
The following tables present information about the Company’s financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring
basis as of December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010 and indicate the fair value hierarchy of the valuation techniques
utihized by the Company to determine such fair value

December 31, 2011

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets measured at fair value
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Bonds $ - $ 48,971 $ 29 $ 49,000

Stocks 5,485 3 14 5.502
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 5,485 48,974 43 54,502
Available for sale financial assets

Bonds - 5,022 19 5,041

Stocks 2 - 1 3
Total available for sale financial assets 2 5,022 20 5,044
Other assets — dervatives - 927 - 927
Total assets measured at fair value $ 5,487 $ 54,923 $ 63 $ 60,473
Liabilities measured at fair value
Other habilities — derivatives @ $ - $ 273 $ - % 273

(1} Excludes coliateral recewved of $10
(2} Excludes collaterat pledged of 345

During 2011 no assets have been transferred from level 1 to level 2 (or level 2 to level 1) due to the stock no longer being active 1n a
quoted market
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December 31 2010

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets measured at fair value
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Bonds $ - $ 44,535 $ 35 $ 44,570

Stocks 4,947 - 417 5.364
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 4,947 44,535 452 49,934
Avalable for sale financial assets

Bonds - 4,238 20 4,258

Stocks 16 - 1 17
Total available for sale financiat assets 16 4,238 21 4,275
Qther assets — denvatives ¥ - 930 - 930

Total assets measured at far value
Liabilites measured at fair value
Other liabilities — derivatives @

(1) Excludes collateral receved of $16
(2) Excludes collateral pledged of $3%

§ 4963 $ 49,703 $ 473 5 55139

s - $ 148 $ - b 148

Duning 2010 no assets have been transferred from level 1 1o level 2 (or level 2 to level 1) due 10 the stock no longer being active 1n a

quoted market

January 1, 2010

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets measured at fai value
Financial assets at fair value through profit or less

Bonds $ - $ 41,538 $ 91 § 41,629

Stocks 4,783 - 145 4,928
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 4,783 41,538 236 46,557
Available for sale financial assets

Bonds - 2,452 22 2,474

Stocks 65 - 1 66
Total avatlable for sale financial assets 65 2,452 23 2,540
Other assets — derivatives ™ - 676 17 693

Total assets measured at fair value

Liabilities measured at fair value

Other liabihties — derivatives

{1) Excludes collateral receved of $35

$ 4848 $ 44,666 H 276 § 49,790

3 - $ 188 s - 3 188
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8 Fmancial Instruments Fair Value Measurement (cont'd)

The following table presents additnonal information about assets and habilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis and for
which the Company has utilized Level 3 inputs to determine farr value for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

2011
Fair value Fair value
through Available Other through Avallable
profit or for sale assets — profit or for sale
loss bonds bonds dervatives loss stecks stocks
Balance, beginning of year $ 35 $ 20 $ - $ 417 $ 1
Total gains/(losses)

Included in net earnings 3 - - 35 -

Included in OCI - 1 - - -
Purchases - - - 65 -
Sales (4) - - {6) -
Settlements {5) (2) - - -
Transfers out of Level 3 - - - (497) -
Balance, end of year $ 29 $ 19 $ - $ 14 $ 1
Total gains/{losses) for the year included

in net earnings for assets held at
December 31, 2011 $ 3 $ - $ - $ (3) $ -
2010
fair vatue Farr value
through Avallable Other through Avalable
profit o for sale assets — profit or for sale
loss bonds bonds dervatives loss stocks stocks
Balance, beginning of year $ 91 ’ 22 $ 17 $ 145 ] 1
Total gains/{losses)

Included In net earnings (2) - (7 16 -
Purchases - - - 287 -
Sales - - - (30} -
Settlements (6) {2) - - -
Transfers out of Level 3 (48) - - m -
Balance, end of year S 35 $ 20 $ - $ 37 $ 1
Total gains/{losses} for the year included

in net earnings for assets held at
December 31, 2010 $ ] $ - $ (17 L3 16 s -
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9 Pledging of Assets

The amount of assets included 1n the Company’s balance sheet which have a securnity interest by way of pledging $577 (3554 at
December 31, 2010 and $595 at January 1, 2010), 1n respect of reinsurance agreements

10 Goodwill and Intangible Assets

{a} Goodwill

The carrying value of goodwill, all in the shareholder account, and changes 1n the carrying value of goodwill are as follows

20m 2010
Balance, beginning of year $ 5,267 $ 5270
Sale of subsidiary by London Reinsurance Group (LRG) - (3}
Balance, end of year $ 5,267 $ 5267

The Company has no accumulated ijmpairment losses on goodwll at December 31, 2011 and 2010

(b) Intanglble Assets
The carrying value of intangible assets and changes 1n the carrying value of intangible assets are as follows
(0 Indefinite hfe intangible assets

Shareholder portion
of acquired future

Brands Customer participating
201 and trademarks  contract related  account profit Total
Cost and net carrying amount
Balance, beginning of year $ n $ 354 $ 354 $ 1,079
Changes in foreign exchange rates 1 - - 1
Balance, end of year $ 372 $ 354 3 354 $ 1,080
Shareholder portion
of acquired future
Brands Customer participating
2010 and trademarks contract refated account profit Total
Cost and net carrying amount
Balance, beginning of year H 382 $ 354 ] 354 $ 1,090
Changes in foreign exchange rates {1 - - (1
Balance, end of year $ 3N $ 354 $ 354 $ 1,079

The Company has no accumulated impairment losses on 1ndefinite life intangible assets at December 31, 2011 and 2010
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10 Goodwill and intangible Assets (cont'd)

(u} Finite hfe intangible assets

Customer
contract Distnbution
2011 related channels Software Tota
Amortization period range 10-20 years 30 years 5-10 years
Weighted average remaining amortization period 11 years 22 years -
Amortization method Straight-lne  Straight-line  Straight-hne
Cost
Balance, beginning of year ) 329 $ 100 S 242 $ 671
Acquisitions - - 3 3
Other - - 48 48
Balance, end of year $ 329 $ 100 $ 293 % 722
Accumulated amortization and impairment
Balance, beginning of year $ (110} % (24) $  (101) $ (235)
Impairment - - (4} 4
Changes 1n foreign exchange rates - (1) (1) {2)
Amortization (18) (4) (28) {50)
Balance, end of year $  (128) $ (29) $  {134) {291)
Net carrying amount $ 201 $ 7 $ 159 $ 4
Customer
contract Distribution
2010 related channels Software Total
Amortization penod range 10-20 years 30 years 5-10 years
Weighted average remaining amortization period 13 years 22 years -
Amortization methed Straight-ine  Straight-line Straight-hine
Cost
Balance, beginning of year $ 330 ] 108 3 199 b4 637
Acquisttions - - 2 2
Changes in foreign exchange rates ] {8) @ an
Other - - 43 a3
Balance, end of year L] 329 $ 100 S 242 4 671
Accumulated amortization and impairment
Balance, beginning of year $ {92) $ 21) S (76) b (189)
Changes in foreign exchange rates - 1 - 1
Amortization (18) 4 (25) 47)
Balance, end of year $ (10) $ {24) $ {101) $ {235)
Net carrying amount $ 219 $ 76 $ M 3 436
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(c)

(d)

Goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets have been assigned to cash generating units as follows,

Indefirute life
mtangible

2011 Goodwill assets Total
Canada

Group $ 1,024 $ - $ 1,024

Indidual insurance/wealth management 2,723 973 3,696
Europe

Insurance and annuities 1,500 107 1,607

Retnsurance 1 - 1
United States

Financial services 19 - 19

$ 5,267 $ 1,080 $ 6,347
Indefinite life
intangible

2010 Goodwill assets Total
Canada

Group § 1024 $ - 5 1024

Indrvidual insurance/wealth management 2,723 973 3,696
Eurgpe

Insurance and annuities 1,500 106 1,606

Remnsurance 1 - 1
United States

Finanaal services 19 - 19

$ 5267 § 1,079 $ 6346

Recoverable Amount

The recoverable amount s deterruined as the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use Fair value 1s determined using
a combmation of commeonly accepted valuation methodologies, namely comparable trading multiples, comparable transaction
muluples and discounted cash flow analysis Comparable trading and transaction multiples methodologies calculate value by
applying multiples observed in the market against historical results or projections approved by management as applicable Value
calculated by discounted cash flow analysis use cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering an imtial period (typically four or five years) Value beyond the ininal peniod 1s derived from applying a terminal value
multiple to the final year of the initial projection period The termunal value multiple 1s a funcuon of the discount rate and the
estimated terminal growth rate The estimated terminal growth rate 1s not to exceed the long-term average growth rate (1inflanon
rate) of the markets in which the Company operates

The key assumpuions used for the discounted cash flow calculations are based on past experience and external sources of
information The key assumptions are as follows

* Risk adjusted discount rates used for the calculation of present value are based on the Company's weighted average cost of
capital

* Economic assumptions are based on market vields on risk-free interest rates at the end of each reporting period

*» Termminal growth growth rate represents the rate used to extrapolate new bustness contributions beyond the business plan
period, and is based on management’s estimate of future growth and range between 1 5% and 3 0%, depending on the nature of
the business
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11 Owner Occupied Properties and Other Fixed Assets

The carrying value of owner occupied properties and fixed assets and the changes in the carrying value of owner occupied properties
and fixed assets 1s as follows

20M 2010
Owner Other Owner Other
occupied fixed occupled fixed
properties assets properties agsets
Carrying value, beginming of year $ 323 $ 380 3 303 5 368
Less accumulated deprecationfimpairments (13) (295) (12} 277
Net carrying value, beginning of year 310 85 291 91
Additions 49 37 22 22
Disposals - - - {1)
Depreciation (2} (26) @) (25)
Net exchange differences - 1 (1} (2}
Net carrying value, end of year 357 97 310 85
Plus accumulated depreciationimpairments 16 31 13 295
Carrying value, end of year $ 373 $ 418 H) 323 $ 380
The following table provides details of the carrying value of owner occupied properties and fixed assets by geographic location
December 31 December 31 lanuary
2011 2010 2000
Canada $ 426 $ 369 3 352
Europe 28 26 30
3 454 5 395 3 382

There are no restrictions on the title of the owner occupied properues and fixed assets nor are they pledged as secunty for debt

12 Other Assets

{a) Other assets consist of the following

December 31 December 31 January 1
2011 2010 2010

Premiums n course of collection % 418 ) 378 3 393
Interest due and accrued 854 809 826
Current Income taxes 63 496 728
Prepaid expenses 73 19 58
Accounts receivable 425 376 261
Accrued pension asset (note 23) 420 302 248
Deferred acqusition costs {note 12(b)} 529 508 501
Other 153 278 53

$ 2,935 $ 322 $ 3,068
$1,986 of total other assets are expected to be realized within 12 months from the reporting date
The above amounts due within 12 months exclude DAC The changes in DAC are presented below 1n (b}

(b} Changes in deferred acquisition costs for investment contracts are as follows
2011 2010
Balance, beginning of year $ 508 $ 501
Additions 123 136
Amortization {71) 47
Foreign exchange 6 41)
Disposals (37) (41)
$ 529 $ 508

46  The Geeat West Life Assurance Company Annual Report 2011

-




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13 Scgregated Funds for the Risk of Unitholders

{a) Segregated funds - consolidated net assets

December 31 December 31 January 1
20m 010 2000
Bonds $ 10,356 $ 9,086 $ 831
Mortgage loans 2,303 2,058 1,744
Stocks 52,220 52,616 47,168
Investment preperties 5,457 5,598 6,012
¢ Cash and cash equivalents 5,302 5,336 5,538
Accrued income 241 203 156
Other habilities (1,656) (1,259) (1,192)
g $ 74,223 $ 73,638 $ 67,805
(b) Segregated funds - consolidated statements of changes in net assets
2011 2010
Segregated funds net assets, beginning of year $ 73,638 $ 67,805
, Additions {deductions})
H Policyholder deposits 10,761 10,387
Net nvestment income 130 499
Net realized capital gains (losses) on investments 974 1,869
/ Net unrealized capital gans {fosses) on mvestments {3,020) 3,151
Unrealized gains (losses} due ta changes in foreign exchange rates 275 (2,209
Policyholder withdrawals (8,552) (8,018)
Net transfer from Geperal Fund 17 154
585 5.833
Segregated funds net assets, end of year $ 74,223 $ 73.638

14 Insurance and Investment Contract Liabilities

(a} Insurance and investment contract liabilities
December 31 2011

Gross Ceded Net
Insurance contract liabihties $ 94,111 $ 3,823 $ 90,288
Investment contract iabiities 746 223 523

$ 94,857 $ 4,046 $ 90,811

December 31,2010

Gross Ceded Net
Insurance contract habilities $ 88929 § 4192 $ 84,737
Investment contract hakulities 764 pL8) 523

$ 89,693 $ 4433 $ 85,260

H January 1, 2010
Gross Ceded Net
Insurance contract habilities $ 87446 $ 4,603 i 82,843
Investment contract liabilities 820 286 534
7 5 88266 $ 4889 $ 83377
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14 tnsurance and Investment Contract Liabilities {cont'd)
(b) Composition of insurance and investment contract liabilities and related supporting assets

(1) The composituon of insurance and investment contract habilities 1s as follows
Decernber 31, 2011

Gross Ceded Net
Participating
Individual insurance $ 26,470 b3 {49) $ 26519
Eurgpefreinsurance 1,230 - 1,230
Corporate 1,580 2 1,578
Naon-Participating
Indwvidual insurance 6,609 823 5,786
Wealth management 13,752 - 13,752
Group 6,738 95 6,643
Europe/remnsurance 35,464 1,432 34,032
Corporate 3,014 1,743 1,271
$ 94,857 $ 4,046 $ 90,811
December 31 2010
Gross Ceded Net
Participating
Indiidua! insurance $ 25,094 $ 6 § 25,088
Europe/reinsurance 1,209 - 1,209
Corporate 1,469 4 1,465
Non-Participating
Individual insurance 5,692 1,132 4,560
Wealth management 13,39 - 13,391
Group 6,331 132 6,199
Eurgpe/reinsurance 33,491 1,385 32,106
Corporate 3,016 1,714 1,242
$ 89693 § 4433 § 85260
lanuary 1 2010
Gross Ceded Net
Participating
Individual insurance $ 23113 s (12) $ 23125
Europefreinsurance 1.456 - 1,456
Corporate 1,488 5 1,483
Non-Participating
Indwidual insurance 4,998 1,084 3914
Wealth management 12,700 - 12,700
Group 5,974 135 5,839
Europefremsurance 35,205 1,661 33,544
Corporate 3,332 2,016 1,316

$ 88,266 $ 4889 $ 83377
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{n) The compasition of the assets supporting habilities and equity 1s as follows
December 31, 2011

Martgage Investment
Bonds leans Stocks propesties Other Total

Carrying value
Partopating hiabilities

Individual insurance 11,862 6,686 3,864 507 3,551 26,470

Europefreinsurance 855 56 176 22 121 1,230

Corporate 1,316 19 - - 185 1,580
Non-participating habilities

Individual insurance 4,485 2N 1,063 20 770 6,609

Wealth management 8,029 2,932 217 — 2,574 13,752

Group 4,159 1,536 49 - 994 6,738

Europefreinsurance 20,348 2,506 119 2,093 10,398 35,464

Corporate 944 140 - - 1,930 3,014
Other 6,520 328 - 6 73,102 79,956
Total equity 1,963 315 896 550 10,405 14,129
Total carrying value $ 60,481 $ 14,849 $ 6,384 $ 3,198 $104,030 $ 188,942
Fair value $ 61,144 $ 15,929 $ 6,452 $ 3,198 $104,030 $190,753

December 31 2010

Morgage Investment
Bonds loans Stocks properties Cther Total

Carrying value
Participating liabilities

Indnadual insurance 10,872 6,158 3,775 419 3,870 25,094

Europe/freinsurance 805 65 185 27 127 1,209

Corporate 1,184 97 - - 188 1,469
Non-participating liabilities

Individual insurance 3,574 240 857 13 1,008 5.692

Wealth management 8,586 3,327 516 - 962 13,39

Group 3,796 1,502 58 - 975 631

Europe/reinsurance 18,874 2,189 108 1,914 10,406 33,49

Corporate 928 146 - - 1,942 3,016
Other 4.1 330 - 19 74,471 79,551
Total equity 1,651 339 166 561 9,695 13,012
Total carryng value $ 5500 $ 14393 $ 6,265 $ 2,953 $ 103,644 $ 182,256
Fair value $ 55355 $ 15,088 $ 6334 $ 2953 $ 103,644 $ 183,374

January 1 2010
Mortgage Investment
Bonds loans Stocks properties Other Total

Carrying value
Participating liabilities

Indwidual insurance § 10,244 $ 6025 § 3535 $ 324 $ 2,98 $ 23113

Europe/reinsurance 784 77 224 33 338 1,456

Corporate 1,162 134 - - 192 1,488
Non-participating ltabilities

Individual insurance 2,473 219 587 pal 1,698 4,998

Wealth management 8,220 3.465 336 - 679 12,700

Group 3,615 1,643 68 - 648 5.974

Europe/reinsurance 18,903 2,535 131 1,683 11,953 35,205

Corporate 941 187 - - 2,204 3,332
Other 2,287 322 - 4 70,481 73,094
Total equity 1,554 426 1,023 544 9,330 12,877
Total carrying value § 50,183 $ 15033 $ 5904 $ 2,609 $ 100,508 $ 174,237
Fair value § 50,257 $ 15,242 $ 5965 $ 2609 $ 100,508 $ 174,581
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14 Insurance and Investment Contract Liabilities {cont'd)

(c)

50

Cash flows of assets supporung insurance and investment contract habilities are matched within reasonable hmits Changes in the
fair values of these assets are essentially offset by changes 1n the fair value of insurance and investment contract habilities

Changes 1n the fair values of assets backing capital and surplus, less retated income taxes, would result in a corresponding change

in surplus over time 1n accordance with investment accounting policies

Changes in Insurance Contract Liabilities

The change In insurance contract habilittes during the year was the result of the following business activities and changes in

actuarnial estimates

2011
Participating

Gross habihity  Retnsurance asset Net
Balance, beginning of year 5 27,11 $ 10 $ 27,1
Crown ancillary reclassification (89) - (89)
Impact of new business 133 - 133
Normal change in force 1,509 {12) 1,521
Management action and changes n assumptions {110) (45) {65)
Impact of foreign exchange rate changes 70 - 70
Balance, end of year $ 29,244 $ 47 $ 29,291

Non partiapating

Gross habihty  Reinsurance asset Net Total Net
Balance, beginning of year $ 61,198 $ 4,182 $ 57,016 $ 84,737
Crown anaillary reclassification 89 - 89 -
Impact of new business 2,025 M 1.884 2,017
Normal change In force 1,613 {53) 1,666 3,187
Management action and changes In assumptions (795) {469) (326) (391)
impact of foreign exchange rate changes 737 69 668 738
Balance, end of year $ 64,867 $ 3,870 % 60,997 $ 90,288

2010
Participating

Geoss lability Rewmnsurance asset Net
Balance, beginning of year § 26,006 $ {7} $ 26013
Impact of new business 193 - 193
Normal change 1n force 1,742 16 1,726
Management action and changes 1n assumptions {4} - (4)
Impact of foreign exchange rate changes (206) 1 (207)
Balance, end of year $ 2.7 $ 10 $ 2.1

Non partiapating

Gross hiability Reinsurance asset Net Total Net
Balance, beginning of year $ 61,440 $ 4610 § 56,830 $ 82,843
Impact of new business 2,997 14 2,856 3,049
Normal change in force 297 271} 568 2,294
Management action and changes in assumptions {472) (77} {395) {399)
Business movement from/to external parties (1) - {1) (1)
Impact of foreign exchange rate changes (3,063} (221) {2.842) (3,049)
Balance, end of year $ 61,198 $ 4182 $ 57,016 $ 84,737
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(d)

Under fair value accounting, movement 1n the market value of the supporung assets 1s a major factor in the movement of
insurance contract habilities Changes in the fair value of assets are largely offset by corresponding changes 1n the fair value of
liabilities The change in the value of the insurance contract habilities associated with the change 1n the value of the supporting
assets 1s included 1n the normal change 1n force above

In 2011, the major contributors to the increase 1n net insurance contract habihities were the mmpact of new business
(82,017 increase) and the normal change 1n the 1n force business ($3,187 increase) primanly due to the change in fair value

Net non-partcipating insurance contract llabihties decreased by $326 in 2011 due to management actions and changes
In assumptions

The Company adopted the revised Actuarial Standards of Practice for subsection 2350 relating to future mortality improvement in
net insurance contract habilities for ife insurance and annuities The resulting decrease 1n net non-participating 1nsurance
contract habihties for life insurance was $331 The resulting change 1n net insurance contract habihities for annuities was a
$3 decrease

The remamning decrease was primarily due to increased provisions for policyholder behavior in Individual Insurance
($213 increase), provisions for asset liability matching ($131 increase) and a reclassification from mascellaneous habilities
(829 increase) offset by updated expenses and taxes ($132 decrease), updated morhdity assumptions (386 decrease), updated base
life insurance mortahty ($30 decrease), and modeling refinements across the Canadian Segment ($109 decrease)

Net participating msurance contract habilities decreased by $65 10 2011 due to management actions and assumpuon changes The
decrease was prnimarily due to decreases 1n the prowvision for future policyholder dividends ($1,556 decrease), modeling
refinements 1n Canada {$256 decrease), improved Individual Life mortality ($230 decrease) and updated expenses and taxes
($15 decrease) parually offset by lower investment returns ($1,952 increase), and increased provisions for policyholder behavior
(540 increase)

In 2010, the major contributers to the increase 1n insurance contract babilities was the impact of new business and the normal
change 1n the in force business partially offset by the impact of foreign exchange rates

Net non-participating insurance contract habilities decreased by $395 1n 2010 due to management actions and assumption
changes The decrease was primarily due to reduced provisions for asset llabihty matching ($169 decrease), modeling refinements
($111 decrease}, updated expenses and taxes (5110 decrease), improved Life mortality ($57 decrease), and improved Group
Insurance morbidity {$48 decrease) partally offset by increased provisions for policyholder behavior ($76 increase), strengthened
longevity ($18 increase) and strengthened provisions for asset default ($8 increase)

Net participating insurance contract habilities decreased by $4 1n 2010 due to management actions and assumption changes The
decrease was primarily due to updated expenses {$260 decrease), improved investment (320 decrease), and improved Individual
Life mortality ($13 decrease) parually offset by modeling refinements ($213 increase), 1ncreases in the provision for future
policyholder divnidends ($66 increase) and increased provistons for policyholder behavior ($10 increase)

Change in investment contract hhabilities measured at fair value

N 2010
Gross Ceded Net Gross Ceded Net
Balance, beginning of year $ 764 ] 4 $ 523 ] 820 $ 286 5 534
Normal change in force business (55) (26} {29) (35} (29) (6)
Investment experience 29 1 28 - - -
Impact of foreign exchange rate changes 8 7 1 (21) (16) (S
Balance, end of year $ 746 5 223 $ 523 5 764 ] 291 $ 523

The carrying value of investment contract habilities approximates 1ts fair value
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14 Insurance and Investment Contract Liabilities (cont'd)

{e)

1 )]

Canadian Universal Life Embedded Derivatives

The Company bifurcated the index linked component of the umversal life contracts as this embedded dernvative 1s not closely
related to the msurance host and 1s not itself an insurance contract The forward contracts are contractual agreements in which
the policyholder 1s entitled to the performance of the underlying index The policyholder may select one or more of the following
indices the TSX, the S&P and the AEX

Actuarial Assumptions

In the computation of insurance contract habihities, valuation assumptions have been made regarding rates of
mortality/ morbidity, investment returns, levels of operating expenses, rates of policy termination and rates of utihzaton of
elective policy options or provistons The valuation assumpuions use best esumates of future experience together with a margin
for adverse deviation These margins are necessary to provide for possibilities of misesimauon and/or future deterioration 1n the
best esumate assumptions and provide reasonable assurance that insurance contract habilities cover a range of possible
outcomes Margins are reviewed periodically for continued appropriateness

The methods for arniving at these valuation assumptions are outlined below
Mortality

A life nsurance mortality study 1s carried cut annually for each major block of insurance business The results of each study are
used to update the Company's experience valuation mortahty tables for that business When there s insufficient data, use is made
of the latest industry experience to derive an approprate valuation mortality assumption The actuarnial standards were amended
to remove the requirement that, for life tnsurance, any reduction in hatnlities due to mortality improvement assumption be offset
by an equal amount of provision for adverse devianon Appropnate provisions have been made for future mortality deterioration
on term 1nsurance

Annuitant mortahity 1s also studied regularly and the results used to modify established industry experience annwitant mortality
tables Mortahty improvement has been projected to occur throughout tuture years for annuitants

Morbudity

The Company uses industry developed experience tables modified to reflect emerging Company experience Both claim incidence
and termination are monitored regularly and emerging expenence 1s factored into the current valuation

Property and casualty reinsurance

Insurance contract habilities for property and casualty reinsurance written by LRG, a subsidiary of the London Life Insurance
Company (London Life), are determimed using accepted actuarial practices for property and casualty insurers 1n Canada
Reflecting the long-term nature of the business, msurance contract habilities have been estabhshed using cash flow valuation
techmques including discounting The 1nsurance contract habilities are based on cession statements provided by ceding
compantes In certain instances, LRG management adjusts cession statement amounts to reflect management’s interpretation of
the treaty Differences will be resolved via audits and other loss mitigation activities In addition, insurance contract iabilities also
include an amount for incurred but not reported losses (IBNR} which may differ sigmficantly from the ultimate loss development
The estimates and underlying methodology are continually reviewed and updated and adjustments to estimates are reflected in
earnings LRG analyzes the emergence of claims experience against expected assumptions for each remnsurance contract
separately and at the portfoho level If necessary, a more in depth analysis 1s undertaken of the cedant expenence

Investment returns

The assets which correspond to the different hiabihty categories are segmented For each segment, projected cash flows from the
current assets and habilities are used in CALM to determine insurance contract habilities Cash flows from assets are reduced to
provide for asset default losses Testing under several interest rate and equity scenarios (including increasing and decreasing rates)
15 done to provide for reinvestment risk (see note 7(c))

Expenses

Contractual policy expenses (e g sales commussions) and tax expenses are reflected on a best estimate basis Expense studies for
indirect operating expenses are updated regularly to determine an appropnate estimate of future operating expenses for the
hability type being valued Improvements in unit operating expenses are not projected An inflation assumption 1s incorporated
in the estimate of future operating expenses consistent with the interest rate scenarios projected under CALM as inflation 1s
assumed to be corretated with new money mnterest rates

Policy termination

Studies to determine rates of policy terrmnation are updated regularly to form the basis of this estimate Industry data 1s also
available and 1s useful where the Company has no expenience with spectfic types of policies or 1ts exposure 15 limited The
Company has significant exposures in respect of the T-100 and Level Cost of Insurance Universal Life products in Canada and
policy termination rates at the renewal period for renewable term policies in Canada and Remnsurance Industry expenence has
guided our persistency assumption for these products as our own experience 1s very lumtted

52  The Great West Life Assurance Company Annual Report 2011




NOTES TCG CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(g)

Utilization of elective policy options

There are a wide range of electuive options embedded 1n the policies 1ssued by the Company Examples include term renewals,
conversion to whole life insurance (term insurance), settlement annuity purchase at guaranteed rates {deposit annuines) and
guarantee re-sets {segregated fund maturity guarantees) The assumed rates of utilization are based on Company or industry
experience when 1t exists and when not on judgment considering incentives to utihze the eption Generally, whenever it 1s clearly
in the best interests of an informed policyholder to utilize an option, then 1t 1s assumed to be elected

Policyholder dividends and adjustable policy features

Future policyholder dividends and other adjustable policy features are included in the determination of insurance contract
habilities with the assumption that pelicyholder dividends or adjustable benefits will change in the future in response to the
relevant experience The dividend and policy adjustments are determined consistent with policyholders' reasonable expectations,
such expectations being influenced by the participating policyholder dividend policies and/or pehcyholder communications,
marketing material and past practice It 1s our expectation that changes will occur in policyholder dividend scales or adjustable
benefits for participating or adjustable business respectively, corresponding to changes 1n the best estimate assumptions,
resulting 1n an ynmaterial net change 1n insurance contract habilities Where underlying guarantees may limit the ability to pass
all of this expenence back to the policyholder, the impact of this non-adjustability impacting shareholder earnings 1s reflected 1n
the impacts of changes in best esumate assumptions above

Risk management

(1) Insurance nsk
Insurance risk 1s the rnisk that the insured event occurs and that there are large deviations between expected and actual
actuanal assumptions including mortality, persistency, longevity, morhidity, expense vaniations and investment returns
As an msurance company, Great-West Life 15 1n the business of accepung nsk associated with insurance contract habilities
The objective of the Company 1s to mitigate 1ts exposure to risk anising from these contracts through product design, product
and geographical diversification, the implementation of the Company's underwriting strategy guidelines, and through the use
of reinsurance arrangements
The following table provides information about the Company's insurance contract labiliies sensiuvities to management's

best estimate of the approximate impact as a result of changes 1in assumptions used to determine the Company’s liabihity
associated with these contracts

2o
Changes in Impact on
assumptluns Pl’Uflt or loss
Mortality 2% $ {150)
Annuitant mortality 2% $ (170)
Morbidity 5% $  (181)
Investment returns
Parallel shift in yield curve
Increase 1% $ 102
Decrease 1% $ (413)
Change In equity markets
Increase 10% 3 21
Decrease 10% $ (57)
Change In best estimate returns for equities
Increase 1% $ 292
Decrease 1% $ (316)
Expenses 5% $ (49)
Policy termination 10% $ (369)
2010
Changes in Impact on
assumptions profit or foss
Mortality 2% H {(132)
Annuitant mortahty 2% $ {166)
Morbidity 5% L) {151}
Investment returns
Paraltet shuft in yeld curve
Increase 1% $ (19)
Decrease 1% s (281)
Change m equity markets
Increase 10% b 25
Decrease 10% $ {53)
Change in best estimate returns for equities
Increase 1% $ 241
Decrease 1% s (279
Expenses 5% $ (45)
Pohcy terminabion 10% $ 261
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14 |nsurance and Investment Contract Liabihities {con1'd)

' Concentration risk may arise from geographic regions, accurnulation of risks and market risk The concentration of insurance
risk before and after reinsurance by geographic region 1s described below

December 31, 2011

December 31, 2010 January 1 2010

Gross Ceded Net Graoss Ceded Net Gross Ceded Net
|
Canada $53,59 % 869 $ 52,700 5 50,508 $ 1,270 ' 49238 $ 46,785 & 1,207 § 45,578
Europe 36,694 1,432 35,262 34,700 1,385 33,315 36,661 1,661 35,000
| Umited States 4,594 1,745 2,849 4,485 1,778 2,707 4,820 2,01 2,799
$£ 94,857 % 4,046 $ 90,811 $ 89,693 $ 4,433 § 85,260 § 88,266 § 4,889 $ 83377

(1) Remnsurance risk

Maximum limuts per insured life benefit amount (which vary by hine of business) are established for life and health insurance

and remsurance s purchased for amounts 1n excess of those lumits

Reinsurance costs and recovenes as defined by the reinsurance agreement are reflected in the valuation with these costs and
recoveries being appropriately calibrated to the direct assumptions

Remnsurance contracts do not relieve the Company from its obligations to policyholders Failure of reinsurers to honour their
obligations could result in losses to the Company The Company evaluates the financial condiuon of 1ts reinsurers to
minimize 11s exposure to significant losses from remnsurer insclvencies

Certain of the remsurance contracts are on a funds withheld basis where the Company retains the assets supporting
the reinsured mmsurance contract habilities, thus minimizing the exposure to significant losses from reinsurer msolvency on

those contracts

15 Financing Charges

Fmancing charges consist of the following

20Mm 2010
Interest on fong-term debentures and other debt struments s 20 $ 20
Net interest on capital trust secunties 43 48
Other 1" 6

! 16 Debentures and Other Debt Instruments

Debentures and other debt instruments consist of the following

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010 tanuary 1 2010

Carrying Market Carrying Market Carrying Market
value value value value value value
Lang term
Operating
Notes payable with interest rate
of 8 0% due May b, 2014, unsecured $ 3 $ 3 ] 4 $ 4 s 5 b 5
! Capetal
Great-West
6 74% debentures due
November 24, 2036, unsecured 200 200 200 200 200 200
Canada Life
6 40% subordinated debentures
due December 11, 2028, unsecured 100 115 100 110 100 105
300 315 300 310 300 305

Total debentures and other debt instruments
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17 Other Liabihities
(a} Other Liabilities consist of the following
December 31 Decemnber 31 January 1
M 2010 2010
Current Income taxes S 370 $ 354 $ 369
Accounts payable 539 914 430
Pension and other post-employment benefits {note 23) 547 459 460
Deferred income reserve (note 17(b)) 406 377 357
Other 1.075 1,267 1,070
$ 2,937 5 33N $ 2686
$1,984 of total other habilities are expected to be realized within 12 moenths from the reporting date
The above amounts due within 12 months exclude DIR The changes of DIR are presented below in (b)
(b) Changes in deferred income reserves are as follows
2011 2010
Balance, beginning of year $ 377 $ 357
Additions 97 108
Amortization (38) 27
Fareign exchange 5 {33)
Disposals (35) (28)
$ 406 $ 377
18 Capital Trust Securities
December 31 2011 December 11, 2010 lanuary 1 2010
Carrying Market Carrying Market Carrying Market
value value value value vatue value
Capntal trust securities
5 995% Caprtal trust securties due
December 31, 2052, unsecured {GWLCT) $ 350 $ 363 $ 350 $ 375 $ 350 $ 383
6 679% Capital trust secunties due
June 30, 2052, unsecured (CLCT) 300 307 300 320 300 in
7 529% Capital trust securities due
June 30, 2052, unsecured (CLLT) 150 197 150 198 150 186
800 867 800 893 800 900
Acquisition related fair market value adjustment 15 - 17 - 19 -
Trust securities held by consolidated
group as temporary investments {44) (44} 44} (44} {41} (a1}
Total $ M 5 823 $ 173 $ 849 $ 718 S 859

Great-West Life Capital Trust (GWLCT), a trust estabhished by Great-West Life, had 1ssued $350 of capital trust securities, the proceeds
of which were used by GWLCT to purchase Great-West Life senior debentures 1n the amount of $350, and Canada Life Capital Trust
(CLCT), a trust established by Canada Life, had 1ssued $450 of capital trust securities, the proceeds of which were used by CLCT to
purchase Canada Life senior debentures in the amount of $345¢ Distributions and interest on the capital trust securities are classified
as financing charges on the Consolidated Statements of Earnings (see note 15)

Pursuant to the CLFC acquisition 1n 2003, the Canadian regulated subsidiaries had purchased certain of these Capital Trust
Debentures During the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company disposed of $138 principal amount of capital trust securities held
by the consolidated group as temporary investments

Subject to regulatory approval, GWLCT and CLCT may redeem the GREATs and CLiCS, 1n whole or in part, at any ume The CLICS
Series A securities are callable at par on June 30, 2012 and the GREATs Series A securities are callable at par on December 31, 2012
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19

Participating Account

The Company controlled a 100% equity interest in London Life and Canada Life at December 31, 2011 and 2010 The parucipating
operations and the parucipaung balance sheets are presented as combined or consolhdated in the operations in the Company’s
financial statements The following tables provide additional information related to the operations and financial pesion of each enurty

(a)

(b}

{c)

56

Net earnings, participating account

201 2010
Net earmings attributable to participating account before policyholder dividends
Great-West Life $ 173 $ 146
London Life 825 697
Canada Life 253 241
1,251 1,084
Policyholder dividends
Great-West Life (134) (129)
London Life (758) (730)
Canada Life (242) (235)
(1,134} {1,094)
Net earnings {loss} - particpating account $ 17 $ {10
Participating account surplus:
December 31 December 31 January 1
201 010 2010
Participating account accumulated surplus
Great-West Life $ 492 $ 453 H 436
Landon Life 1,598 1.531 1,564
Canada Life 49 38 32
2,139 2,022 2,032
Participating account accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
Great-West Life 18 8 &
London Life 53 5 (1)
Canada Life 6 3 3
Accumulated other comprehensive income {loss) — participating account 77 16 8
$ 2,216 $ 2038 § 2,040
Participating account - other comprehensive income
2011 2010
Other comprehensive income {loss) attributable to participating account
Great-West Life $ 10 ' 2
London Life 48
Canada Life 3 -
Other comprehensive income (loss} — participating account $ 61 .4 8
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20 Share Capital

Authornzed
Unlimited Preferred Shares
Unlimited Common Shares

Issued and outstanding

December 31, 2011 December 31 2010 January 1, 2010
Carrying Carrying Carrying
Number value Number value Number value

Preferred shares
Series O, 5 55% Non-Cumulative Preferred Shares - $ - - $ - 6,278,6M $ 157
Series Q, 5 00% Non-Cumulative Preferred Shares 40,000 1 40,000 1 40,000 1

40,000 $ 1 40,000 $ 1 6,318,671 f 158
Common shares
Balance, beginning of year 2,117,015 $ 6,426 2,088,655 $ 6116 2,088,655 $ 6116
Issued to parent - - 28,360 310 - -
Balance, end of year 2,117,015 $ 6,426 2,117,015 3 6426 2,088,655 $ 6116
Total share capital $ 6,427 $ 6,427 3 6,274

Preferred Shares

On October 29, 2010, the Company redeemed all of 1ts outstanding 5 55% Non-Cumulauve Preferred Shares Series O at a price of
$25 00 per share

The Sernes Q, 5 00% Non-Cumulative Preferred Shares are redeemable at the option of the Company for $25 00 per share on the
later of December 31, 2007 and the date on which there are no Great-West Life Capital Trust Secunties outstanding in GWLCT,
subject to regulatory approval

Common Shares

On October 26, 2010 the Company 1ssued 28,360 common shares to 1ts parent, Lifeco, for a total of $310 The Campany then
invested $255 1n common shares of its wholly owned subsidiary LIG which 1n turn invested $255 in common shares of its indirect
wholly owned subsidiary London Life

21 Capital Management

At the consolidated company level, the Company monitors the amount of consohidated capital available, and the amounts deployed 1n
1ts vartous operaung subsidianes The amount of capital deployed in any particular company or country 1s dependent upon local
regulatory requirements as well as the Company’s internal assessment of capital requirements tn the context of its operational nisks and
requirements and strategic plans

Smnce the uming of available funds cannot always be matched precisely to commitments, imbalances may arse when demands for
funds exceed those on hand Also, a demand for funds may arise as a result of the Company taking advantage of current investinent
opporturties The sources of the funds that may be required 1n such situations include bank financing and the 1ssuance of debentures
and equity securities

The Company’s practice 15 to maintain the capitalization of 1ts regulated operating subsidiaries at a level that will exceed the relevant
mimmum regulatory capital requirements 1n the jurisdictions in which they operate

The capitalization of the Company and 1ts operating subsidiaries will also take into account the views expressed by the various credit
rating agencies that provide financial strength and other ratings to the Company

in Canada, OSFI has established a capital adequacy measurement for hfe insurance companies incorporated under the Insurance
Compantes Act {Canada) and their subsidiaries, known as the Mimmum Continuing Capital and Surpius Requirements (MCCSR)
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21 Capital Management (cont'd}

For Canadsian regulatory reporting purposes, capital 1s defined by OSFI in 1ts MCCSR guideline The following table provides the MCCSR
mmformation and rattos for Great-West Life

20 2010

Capital Available
Tier 1 Caprtal

Common shares $ 6,426 $ 6426

Shareholder surplus 5,638 6,563

Innovative instruments 769 in

Other Tier 1 Capital Elements 2,022 609

Gross Tier 1 Capital 14,855 14,369
Deductions from Tier 1

Goodwill & intangibie assets in excess of imit 5,661 5,699

Other deductions 1,240 1,211
Net Tier 1 Capital 7,954 7,459
Deductions/Adjustments to Net Tier 1 Capital (36) {3n
Adjusted Net Tier 1 Capital 7,918 7,422
Tier 2 Capital

Tier 2A 182 77

Tier 2B allowed 300 300

Tier 2C 1,252 1,206

Tier 2 Deductions/Adjustments (36) {37
Net Tier 2 Capital 1,698 1,546
Total Available Capital $ 9616 $ 8968
Capital Required

Assets Default & market nisk $ 1,815 $ 1,679

Insurance Risks 1,961 1,877

Interest Rate Risks 927 853

Other 6 7
Total Capital Required $ 4,709 $ 4414
MCCSR ratios
Tier 1 168% 168%
Total 204% 203%

The result of adoption of IFRS as at January 1, 2011 15 a reduction 1n Total Available Capital subject to phase-in of $636 This impact 1s
to be phased-1n over eight quarters beginning March 31, 2011 n accordance with the [FRS trans:ton guidance outlined by OSFI

In the Unuted Kingdom, Canada Life U K 1s requrred to satisfy the capital resources requirements set out 1n the Integrated Prudential
Sourcebook, part of the Financial Services Authonty Handbook The capital requirements are set prescribed by a formulaic capital
requirement (Pillar 1) and an individual capital adequacy framework which requires an entity to self-assess an appropnate amount of
capital 1t should hold, based on the nisks encountered from 1ts business activines At the end of 2011, Canada Life U X complied with
the capital resource requirements in the United Kingdom

As at December 31, 2011 and 2010 the Company maintained capital levels above the minimum local regulatory requirements 1n each
of 1ts other foreign operations

The Company 1s both a user and a provider of reinsurance, including both traditional reinsurance, which 13 undertaken pnmarly to
mutigate against assumed insurance risks, and financial er finite reinsurance, under which the amount of insurance risk passed to the
remnsurer or 1ts reinsureds may be more hmited The Company 1s required to put amounts on deposit for certain remnsurance
transactions These amounts en deposit are presented in funds held by ceding insurers on the Consolidated Balance Sheets Some of
these amounts on deposit support surplus

The Company has also established policies and procedures designed to 1denufy, measure and report all material risks Management 18
responsible for establishing capital management procedures for implementing and monitoring the capital plan The Board of Directors
reviews and approves all capital transactions undertaken by management
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22 Share-Based Payments

(a} Lifeco has a stock option plan {the Plan} pursuant to which options to subscribe for common shares of Lifeco may be granted to
certain officers and employees of Great-West Life and s affihates Lifeco’s Compensation Commuttee (the Committee) administers
the Plan and, subject to the specific provisions of the Plan, fixes the terms and conditiens upon which opuons are granted The
exercise price of each option granted under the Plan 1s fixed by the Commuttee, but cannot under any circumstances be less than
the weighted-average trading price per Lifeco common share on the Toronto Stock Exchange for the five trading days preceding
the date of the grant Termination of employment may, in certain circumstances, result 1n forferture of the options, unless
otherwise determined by the Commuttee

Dunng 2011, 1,115,400 options were granted (583,000 options were granted during 2010) The weighted average fair value of
options granted during 2011 was $4 40 per option The fair value of each option was estimated using the Black-Scholes opuion-
pnicing model with the following weighted average assumptions used for those options granted 1n 2011 dividend yield 4 53%,
expected volatility 23 29%, risk-free interest rate 2 87%, and expected hife of 7 years

To date, four categones of options have been granted under the Plan The exercise of the options in three of these four categones
1s subject to the attainment of certain financial targets of the Company Options vest over a period of up to 8§ years All of the
options have a maximum exercise peried of ten years The maximum number of Lifeco common shares that may be 1ssued under
the Plan s currently 52,600,000

The following table summarizes the status of, and changes n, options outstanding and the weighted-average exerctse price

2011 2010

Weighted- Weighted

average average
Options exercise price Options exercise price
Qutstanding, begmning of year 9,101,729 $ 2810 11,403,922 § 247N
Granted 1,115,400 2716 583,300 26 82
Exercised {565,164) 179 {2,815,959) 14 05
Forferted/expired {96,926) 3165 (69,534) 3299
Outstanding, end of year 9,555,039 $ 2855 9,101,729 $ 2810
Options exercisable at end of year 6,954,981 $ 2789 6,209,883 $ 2619

Compensation expense due to transactions accounted for as equity-settled share-based payments of $4 after-tax in 2011 ($3 after-
tax i 2010) ansing from transactions in which the services recewved did not qualify for recogmition as an asset, has been
recogmzed m the Consolidated Statements of Earnings

The entity measured the compensation for the Dhrector’s services based on fair market value when measuring the services received
in the deferred share unit plan (DSPP/DSUP)

The following table summarnzes information on the ranges of exercise prices including weighted-average remaining contractual
hife at December 31, 2011

Qutstanding Exercisable
Weighted
average Weighted- Weighted-
remainmy average average
Exeraise price contractual exercise exercise
ranges Qptions life price Options price Exptry
$1942-529 84 106,299 058 2661 106,299 2561 2012
$1942-$29 84 1,932,500 151 2154 1,932,500 2154 2013
$24 37-826 00 569,000 234 2523 569,000 2523 2014
$29 84-329 84 1,595,000 395 2584 1,595,000 29 84 2015
$27 16-331 27 482,000 450 3635 482,000 3035 2M6
$3536-337 22 1,042,800 520 3706 445,548 37m 2007
$31 2743127 1,315,000 637 3127 1,117,334 31272 2018
$27 13-327 13 531,140 834 2678 107,300 2679 2020
$27 16-27 16 981,300 917 2716 - - 2021
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22 Share-Based Payments {cont'd}

{b) The Company has both a voluntary Deferred Share Urut Plan and a mandatory Deferred Share Unit Plan (the “Voluntary DSU Plan”
and the “Mandatory DSU Plan” respectively) for 1ts Directors to promote a greater ahgnment of interests between the Directors
and the shareholders of the Corporation Under the Voluntary DSU Plan, each Director may elect to receive his or her annual
retainer and attendance fees entirely 1n the form of Deferred Share Units, entirely 1n cash, or equally in cash and Deferred Share
Units Under the Mandatory DSU Plan, which was created as of April 29, 2004, each Director who 1s a resident of Canada or the
United States receives $45,000 of his or her annual retainer 1n the form of Deferred Share Units In both cases the number of
Deferred Share Units granted 1s determined by dividing the amount of remuneration payable to the Director by the weighted
average trading price per Common Share on the TSX for the last five trading days of the preceding fiscal quarter (such weighted
average trading price being the “value of a Deferred Share Unut™) Directors receive additional Deferred Share Units 1n respect of
dmidends payable on the Commaon Shares based on the value of a Deferred Share Unit at that ume Deferred Share Uniuts are
redeemable at the ume that an individual ceases te be a Director by a lump sum cash payment, based on the value of the Deferred
Share Units on the date of redemption This amount 1s fully taxable as income in the year in which 1t 1s received In 2010, $1 1n
directors fees were used to acquire Deferred Share Units

23 Pension Plans and Other Post-Employment Benefits

The Company and its subsidiaries mamntain contributory and non-contributory defined benefit pension plans for certain employees
and advisors The Company and 11s subsidiaries also mamtain defined contnbution pension plans for certain employees and advisors

The defined benefit pension plans provide pensions based on length of service and final average pay For most plans, active plan
participants share in the cost of benefits through employee contributions Certain pension payments are indexed either on an ad hoc
basis or a guaranteed basis The determinatien of the defined benefit obhigation reflects pension benefits in accordance with the terms
of the plans The assets supporting the funded pension plans are held 1n separate trusteed pension funds The obligations for the wholly
unfunded pians are included 1n other habihties and are supported by general assets The recogmzed current cost of penston benefits 1s
charged to operating expenses

The defined contribution pension plans provide pension benefits based on accumnulated employee and Company contributions
Company contribunons to these plans are a set percentage of employees’ annual income and may be subject to certain
vesting requirements

The Company and 1its subsidianes also provide post-employment health, dental and lfe insurance benefits to eligible employees,
adwisors and their dependents Retirees share 1n the cost of benefits through deductibles, co-insurance and caps on benefits The
amount of some of the post-employment benefits other than pensions depends on future cost escalation These post-employment
benefits are not pre-funded and the amount of the obligation for these benefits 1s included in other habilines and 1s supported by
general assets The recogmzed current cost of post-retirement non-pension benefits 1s charged to operating expenses

Prior years’ cumulative experience gains or losses tn excess of the greater of 10% of the beginning of year fair value of plan assets and
defined benefit obligation are amortized over the expected average remainung working hives of the employee/advisor group

Subsidianies of the Company have declared partial windups 1n respect of certain defined benefit pension plans, the impact of which
has not been reflected in the pension plan accounts

The overall expected rate of return on plan assets for the year 1s deterrined based on long-term market expectations prevailing at the
beginning of the year for each asset class, weighted by portfolio allocation, less an allowance in respect of all expenses expected to be
charged to the fund Anticipated future long-term performance of individual asset categories 15 considered, reflecung management's
best estimates of expected future inflation and expected real yields on fixed income secunties and equities Since the prior year end
there have been no changes in the method used to determine the overall expected rate of return

The period of time over which benefits are assumed to be paid 1s based on best estumate of future mortality, including allowances for
mortality improvements Mortality assumptions are significant in measunng the defined benefit obliganuon for defined benefit plans
The mortality assumptions applhed by the Company take into consideration average life expectancy, including allowances for future
mortality improvement as appropnate, and reflect vaniations in such factors as age, gender and geographic location The assumptions
also take into consideration an estimation of furure improvements in longevity This estimate 1s subject to considerable uncertainty
and judgment 1s required in establishing this assumption

The mortality tables are reviewed at least annually, and assumpuons are 1n accordance with accepted actuanal practice 1n Canada
Emerging plan expenence 1s reviewed and considered in estabhshing the best estimate for future mortality
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The following tables reflect the financial position of the Company's contributory and non-contributory defined benefit plans at

December 31, 2011 and 2010 and January 1, 2010

(a} Plan Assets, Benefit Obligation and Funded Status
Defined benefit pension plans

Other post employment benefits

December 31 December 31 January 1 December 31 December 31 January 1
201 010 2010 2011 2010 2010

Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of period $ 2,842 $ 26N $ 267 $ - $ - $ -
Expected return on plan assets 170 161 - - - -
Employee contnbutions 16 16 - - - -
Employer contributions 80 78 - 16 17 -
Actuarial gains {losses) {111) 81 - - - -
Benefits paid {163) (129) - (16) (17) -
Settlernent - (2} - - - -
Foreign currency exchange rate changes 4 (34) - - - -
Fair value of pian assets, end of penod $ 2838 $ 2,842 § 267 $ - $ - $ -
Change n Defined Benefit Obhigation
Defined benefit obligation, beginning of penod $ 2779 § 2,438 $ 2,438 $ 389 $ 333 $ 333
Employer current service cost 58 44 - 1 1 -
Employee contributicns 16 1% - - ~ -
Interest on defined benefit abhgation 151 147 - 2 20 -
Actuanal {gains} losses 138 304 - {4) 52 -
Benefits paid {163) {129) - (186) (17} -
Past service cost 1 5 - - - -
Settlements - (2) - - - -
Fereign currency exchange rate changes 5 LEN -~ - - -
Defined benefit abligation, end of period $ 2,985 § 2779 $ 2,438 % 391 % 389 1 333
Asset (Liability} recognized n the Balance Sheets
Funded status of plans — surplus {defiat) $ (147 $ 63 $ 233 $  (391) $ (389) $ (333}
Unrecogrized past service costs {credits) 5 5 - {22) {28) 34)
Net actuanal (gains} losses 453 203 - 46 52 -
Unrecognized amount due to hmit on asset (71) {63) (78) - - -
Asset {habifity) recogrized in the Consolidated

Balance Sheets $ 240 $ 208 g 195 $ (367) 3 (365) $ (367)
Recorded in
Other assets $ 420 ) 302 $ 248 $ - $ - $ -
Other hiabihitias {180) {94} {93} {367) {365) {367)
Asset (hability) recognized in the Consolidated

Balance Sheets $ 240 $ 208 ] 155 ] (367) 3$ (365) $ (367}
Analysis of defined benefit obhigation
Wholly or partly funded plans $ 28N $ 2,622 $ 2,306

o

Wholly unfunded plans 164 $ 157 3 132

$ 391 3 389 $ 333

Actual return on plan assets $ 59 $ 242

The Company expects to contrbute $92 to its funded and unfunded defined benefit pension and other post-employment benefit

plans 1n 2012
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23 Pension Plans and Qther Post-Employment Benefits {cont'd}

{b) Pension and Other Post-Employment Benefits Expense Recognized in Profit or Loss

All Other post-employment
pension plans benefits
2011 2010 W0 2010
Defined benefit current service cost $ 74 $ 60 $ 1 s 1
Defined contnibution current service cost 4 4 - -
Employee contributions (16) (16) - -
Employer current service cost 62 48 1 1
Past service costs recognized 1 - (6} {(6)
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 151 147 2 20
Actuanal {(gain) loss recogrized (1) 19 2 -
Expected return on plan assets {170) {161) - -
Amount recognized due to mit on asset 7 (14} - -
Pension and other post-employment benefits expense recognized $ 50 ) 39 $ 18 $ 15

(c} Asset Allocation by Major Category Weighted by Plan Assets

Defined benefit pension plans

December 31 December 31 January 1
091 2010 2010
Equity securities 45% 49% 48%
Debt secunities 41% 37% 38%
Real estate 5% 4% 5%
Cash and cash equivalents 9% 10% 9%
100% 100% 100%

No plan assets are directly invested in the Company’s or related parties’ securities Plan assets include investments in segregated funds
managed by subsidianes of the Company 1n the Consolidated Balance Sheets of $1,430 ($1,438 1n 2010) Plan assets do not include any
property occupled or other assets used by the Company

(d) Principal Actuarial Assumptions Used at the Balance Sheets Date

Defined benefit Other post-employment
pension plans benefits
2011 2010 011 2010

To determine benefit cost
Discount rate 5 5% 61% 55% 63%
Expected rate of return on plan assets, during the year 6 0% 61% - -
Expected rate of compensation increase 36% 37% - -
Future pension increases 22% 24% - -
To determine defined benefit obligation (DBO)
Discount rate 51% 5 5% 51% 55%
Rate of compensation increase 35% 36% - -
Future pension increases 20% 22% - -
% of DBQ subject to future pension increases 46 0% 47 0% - -
Medical cost trend rates
Initial medical cost trend rate 6 7% 70%
Ultunate medical cast trend rate 45% 4 5%
Year ultimate trend rate 1s reached 2024 2024
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(e) Impact of Changes to Assumed Medical Cost Trend Rates — Other Post-Employment Benefits

1% nCrease 1% decrease
2011 2010 2011 2010
Impact on defined benefit obligation $ 40 S 39 $ (33) $ {33)
Impact on current service cost and interest cost $ 2 b 2 b3 {2) § (2}
{f} Amounts for the current and previous annual periods are as follows:*
201 2010
Defined benefit pension plans
Defined benefit obligation $ (2,985) $ (2,779
Fair value of plan assets 2,838 2,842
Funded status of plans — surplus {deficit) {147) 63
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities {138) {304}
Experience adjustments on plan assets {111) 81
Other post-employment benefits
Defined benefit obhgation {391) {389)
Experience adjustments on plan habilities 4 (52)
24 Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
2011
Unrealized
foreign exchange
gains {losses) Unrealized Unrealized
on translation gans {losses) gams (losses)
of foreign on available on cash flow Participating
operations for sale assets hedges Total account Shareholder
Balance, beginning of year $  (368) $ 103 $ 1 $ (204) $ 16 $  (280)
Other comprehensive loss 82 137 - 219 83 136
Income tax 1 (29} - (28} (22} {6}
83 108 - 1971 61 130
Balance, end of year $  {285) $ n $ 1 $ (73) $ 77 $ (150}
200
Unrealized
foreign exchange
gains {losses) Unreatized Unrealized
on translation gains (losses} gams {losses)
of foreign on available on cash flow PFarticspating
operations for sale assets hedges Total account Sharehalder
Balance, beginning of year $ - H 72 ) 1 s 73 H 8 $ 65
Other comprehensive loss {368) 40 - (328) 14 (342)
tncome tax - (9) - (9) (6 ()
{368) n - (337 8 {345)
Balance, end of year $ (368) H 103 $ 1 $ (264} $ 16 s {280)
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25

Related Party Transactions

(a) Principa! subsidiaries

The financial statements of the Company include the operations of the following subsidiaries

Company Incorporated in Primary business cperation % Held

GLC Asset Management Group Ltd Canada Wealth management 100 00%
GWL Realty Adwisors Inc Canada Real estate investment management 100 00%
London Insurance Group Inc Canada Insurance and wealth management 100 00%
Canada Life Financial Corporation Canada Insurance and wealth management 100 00%

(b) Transactions with related parties included in the consohdated financial statements

64

Reinsurance Transactions

"During 2005, Great-West Life & Annuity Insurance Company of South Carolina (GWSC), an affihated company, assumed on a
comnsurance basis with funds withheld, certain of Canada Life’s U S term lfe reinsurance business During 2007, an additional
amount of U S term lhife reinsurance business was retroceded by Canada Life to GWSC In 2011, for the Consolidated Statements
of Barnings, these transactions resulted 1n a reduction in premium income of $124 ($127 in 2010) and total paid or credited to
policyholders of $176 {$103 1n 2010) The transaction was at market terms and conditions

Other Related Party Transactions

In the normal course of business, the Company provided msurance benefits to other companies within the Power Financial
Corporation group of compames In all cases, transactions were at market terms and conditions

During 2011, the Company provided and received from IGM certain administrative services The Company also provided hife
msurance, annuity and disability insurance products under a distribution agreement with IGM London Life provided distribution
services to IGM

At December 31, 2011 the Company held $39 ($47 1n 2010) of debentures 1ssued by IGM

0N 2010
6 75%, matured May 9, 2011 $ - s 10
6 65%, matures December 13, 2027 15 14
7 45%, matures May 9, 2031 12 12
7 00%, matures December 31, 2032 12 "

$ 39 5 47

During 2011, the Company and segregated funds maintained by the Company purchased residential mortgages of $202 from IGM
($226 1n 2010)

During the year, GWL&A provided certain administrative services to the Company The expense to the Company for these services
was $5 (35 1n 2010}

The Company has 6 74% debentures due to Lifeco, its parent, which have an outstanding balance of $200 ($2001n 2010) Financing
charges of $13 15 included 1n the Consolidated Statements of Earnings ($13 1n 2010)

In 2008, the Company 1ssued $2 ¢ bilhon of 7 127% debentures to Lifeco The Company made a corresponding investment of $2 0
billion in preferred shares of a wholly-owned subsidiary of Lifeco The Company also 1ssued $1 2 billion of 5 75% debentures to
Lifeco 1n 2003 The Company made a corresponding investment of $1 2 bilhon 1n preferred shares of a whelly-owned subsidiary of
Lifeco The Company has legally enforceable rights to settle these financial instruments on a net basts, and the Company
intends to exercise these rights Accordingly the investments and debentures are offset 1n the consolidated financial statements of
the Company
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(c)

26

(a)

(b)

Key management compensation

Key management personnel constitutes those individuals who have the authonty and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlhing the acuvities of Great-West Life, directly or indirectly, including any Director The individuals who comprise the key
management personnel are the Board of Directors as well as certain key management and officers

The following table describes all compensation paid to, awarded to, or earned by each of the key management personnel 1n 2011
for services rendered 1n all capacities to the Company and 1ts subsidianes

20M 2010
Salary $ 10 $ 10
Share based awards 2 —
Option based awards 1 _
Annual non-equity incentive plan compensation 5 6
Pension value 4 g

Income Tax

Income tax receivable (payable)

01 2010
Balance, beginning of year $ 142 $ 359
Current tax expense (203) (90)
Recorded n 0C) (2B) 10)
Payments made on account (197) {75)
Other {21) 42)
Balance, end of year $ (307 $ 142
Deferred income taxes consist of the following losses carried forward and taxable temporary differences
011 2010

insurance and investment contract habilities $ (119 H (232)
Portfolio assets (525) (435)
Losses carred forward 97 105
Intangible assets {68) (68)
Other (150) 28
Net deferred Income tax asset {liability) $ (765) $ 602}
Balance, beginning of year $ (602) $ (494)
Amounts recorded in

Statements of net earnings (140) {95)

Statement of other comprehensive income - 1

Insurance and investment contract habilities 7 (29)
Foreign exchange rate changes {6) 15
Balance, end of year $ (765) $ (602}

A deferred tax asset is recognized for a tax loss carryforward only to the extent that realization of the related tax benefit through
the future taxable profits 1s more hikely than not
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26 Related Party Transactions {cont'd}

Recognition 1s based on the fact that 1t 1s more likely than not that the entity will have taxable profits and/or can utlize tax
planning opportunities before expiration of the deferred tax assets Changes in circumstances 1n fuiure periods may adversely
impact the assessment of the recoverability The uncertainty of the recoverabihity 1s taken 1nto account 1n estabhishing the deferred
tax assets

Management assesses the recoverability of the deferred tax asset carrying values based on future years taxable income and
believes the carrying values of the deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2011 are recoverable

At December 31, 2011, the Company had tax loss carryforwards, totaling $507 ($1,572 n 2010) Of this amount, $282 expire
between 2011 and 2031, while $225 have no expiry date The Company will realize this benefit 1n future years through a reduction
In current Income taxes payable

A deferred tax liability has not been recognized 1n respect of the investment 1n subsidiaries, branches and associates as the
Company 1s able to control the timing, which 1s not probable in the foreseeabile future, of the reversal of the temporary difference

(c) Income tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax

(1) Current income tax

2011 010
Current tax expense $ 193 $ 88
Previously unrecognized tax loss, tax credit or temporary difference of prior period 5 (4)
Other 5 6
Total current income tax ] 203 $ 9¢
{1} Deferred income tax
2011 00
Origination and reversal of temporary difference $ 165 3 72
Changes In tax rates or imposition of new taxes N @
Wiite-down or reversal of previous wnie-down of deferred tax assets 1 8
Previously unrecogruzed tax loss, tax credit or temparary difference of prior period N (2)
Other (12) 21
Total deferred mncome tax $ 140 5 95
Total income tax expense $ 343 $ 185
(in) Tax recorded in other comprehensive income (see note 24)
2011 2010
Current tax $ 28 3 10
Deferred tax - (1)
3 28 3 9
(d} The Company'’s effective income tax rate 1s derived as follows
2011 2010
Combined basic Canadian federal and provincial tax rate $ 674 80% 3§ 468 30 5%
Increase (decrease) in the income tax rate resulting from
Non-taxable investment income (188) {78 (175) (11 4)
Lower effective iIncome tax rates on inceme not subject to tax in Canada (114} (48) (84) (54)
Other 22) 0K ) (20) (13)
Impact of rate changes on future income taxes (7} (03) {4} 03)
Effective income tax rate applicable to current year $ 343 142% § 185 12 1%

There are no tncome tax consequences attaching to the payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders
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27 Operating and Administrative Expenses

2011 20t
Salanes and other employee benefits $ 987 $ 933
Amortization of fixed assets 28 27
Other (96} 858
% 919 $ 1818

28 Derivative Financial Instruments

In the normal course of managing exposure to fluctuations in interest and foreign exchange rates, and to market risks, the
Company 1s an end user of various dernvative financial instruments It 1s the Company’s policy to transact in dertvatives only with the
most creditworthy financial intermediaries Note 7 illustrates the credit quality of the Company’s exposure to counterparties As at
December 31, 2011, the Company recerved assets of $10 ($16 1n 2010) as collateral for dernivative contracts frem counterparues and
pledged assets of $45 ($39 11 2010) as collateral for derivative contracts to counterparties

(a) The following table summarizes the Company’s derivative portfolio and related credit exposure,

2011
Maximum Future Credit Risk
Notional credit credit sk weighted
amount nsk* exposure equivalent equivalent
Interest rate contracts
Swaps & 1979 330 $ 13 5 341 $ 36
Options purchased 197 53 2 48 4
2,176 383 15 389 40
Foreigh exchange contracts
Forward contracts 224 - 3 3 -
Cross-currency swaps 6,175 544 423 966 61
6,399 544 426 969 61
Other denivative contracts
Equity contracts 58 - 4 4 -
Futures - long 7 - - - -
Futures — short 146 - - - -
PA R - 4 4 -
$ 8,786 927 $ 445 $ 1,362 % 101

* Credit nsk equivalent amounts are presented net of collateral receved (310}
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28 Dervative Financial tnstruments {cont'd}

2010
) Maximurm " Future Credit Risk
Notional credit credit nsk weighted
amount osk* exposure equivalent equivalent
Interest rate contracts
Futures — short ) 18 $ - ] - $ - ) -
Swaps 1,440 200 8 198 21
Options purchased 21 26 3 23 1
1,679 226 11 pya| 22
Fareign exchange contracts
Forward contracts 86 1 1 2 -
Cross-currency swaps 5778 703 397 1,100 68
5,864 704 398 1,102 68
Other dernvative contracts
Equity contracts 64 - 4 4 -
Futures — long 8 - - - -
Futures — short 37 - - - -
109 - 4 4 -

$ 7652 $ 930 $ 43 $ 1327 3 90

* Credit nsk equivalent amounts are presented net of collateral recewed ($16)

The following has been disclosed 1n the tables above, as prescribed by OSF1

Maximum Credit Risk
Future Credit Risk

Credit Risk Equivalent
Risk Weighted Equivalent

The total replacement cost of all denivative contracts with positive values

The potential future credit exposure 1s calculated based on a formula prescribed by OSFI The factors
prescribed by OSFI for this calculation are based on derivative type and duration

The sum of Maximum Credit Risk and the potential Future Credit Exposure less any collateral held
Represents the credit risk equivalent, weighted according to the creditworthiness of the counterparty,

as prescrnibed by OSFI
(b) The following table provides the notional amount, term to maturity and estimated fair value of the Company’s derivative portfolio
by category
201
Notional Amaunt Total
1 year or Over 5 estimated
less 1-5 years years Total market value
Interest rate contracts
Swaps $ 404 $ 992 $ 564 $ 1,960 $ 312
Options purchased - 95 102 197 53
404 1,087 666 2,157 365
Foraign exchange contracts
Forward contracts 224 - - 224 -
Cross-currency swaps 43 1,509 4,623 6,175 307
267 1,509 4,623 6,399 307
Other derivative contracts
Equity contracts 40 18 - 58 an
Futures — long 7 - - 7 -
Futures — short 146 - - 146 [4))]
193 18 - m (18)
864 2,614 5,289 8,767 654
Fair value hedges
interest rate contracts
Interest rate swaps - 10 9 19 -
Total $ 864 $ 2,624 $ 5,298 % 8,786 $ 654
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2010
Nouenal Amount Total
1 year or Over 3 estimated
less 1-5 years years Total market value
Interest rate contracts
Futures — short ) 6 $ - $ - ' 6 5 -
Swaps 419 716 305 1,440 188
Options purchased - - 21 2 26
415 716 526 1,667 214
Foreign exchange contracts
Forward contracts 86 - - 86 -
Cross-currency swaps 70 1,284 4,424 5778 588
156 1,284 4,424 5.864 588
Other denivative contracts
Equity contracts 43 21 - 64 (20)
Futures — lang 8 - - 8 -
Futures — short 37 - - 37 -
88 2 - 109 (20
669 2,01 4,950 7.640 782
Farr value hedges
Interest rate contracts
Futures — short 12 - - 12 -
Total $ 681 $ 2,01 $ 4950 5 1852 $ 782

Futures contracts included n the above table are exchange traded contracts, all other contracts are over-the-counter
(c) Interest Rate Contracts

Interest rate swaps, futures and options are used as part of a portfohio of assets to manage interest rate risk associated with
investrnent activities and insurance and investment contract habilities Interest rate swap agreements require the penodic
exchange of payments without the exchange of the notional principal amount on which payments are based Call options grant
the Company the nght to enter into a swap with predetermined fixed-rate payments over a predetermined time period on the
exercise date Call options are used to hedge minimum rate guarantees

Foreign Exchange Contracts

Cross-currency swaps are used in combination with other investments to manage foreign currency nsk associated with
investment activties and insurance and investment contract habilities Under these swaps principal amounts and fixed or floating
mterest payments may be exchanged in different currencies The Company also enters into certain foreign exchange forward
contracts to hedge certain product habilities

Other Derivative Contracts

Equity index swaps, futures and options are used to hedge certain product habibtres Equity index swaps are also used as
substitutes for cash instruments and are used to penodically hedge the market risk associated with certain fee income The
Company may use credit derivatives to manage 1ts credit exposures and for risk diversification in 1ts investment portfoho

29 Legal Provisions, Contingent Liabihities and Subsequent Event

The Company and 1its subsidiaries are from time to time subject to legal actions, including arbitrations and class actions, ansing in the
normal course of business [t1s inherently difficult to pred:ct the outcome of any of these proceedings with certamnty, and 1t 1s possible
that an adverse resolution could have a matenal adverse effect on the consolidated financial position of the Company However, based
on information presently known, it 1s not expected that any of the existing legal actions, either individually or 1n the aggregate, will have
a matenal adverse effect on the consolidated financial position of the Company

A subsidiary of the Company has declared a partial windup 1n respect of an Ontario defined benefit pension plan which will not hkely
be completed for some time The partial windup could involve the distnibution of the amount of actuanal surplus, if any, attributable
to the wound up portion of the plans In addition to the regulatory proceedings involving this part:al windup, a related class action
proceeding has been commenced 1n Ontario related to the partial windup and three potential parnial windups under the plan The class
action also challenges the valhidity of charging expenses to the plan The provisions for certain Canadian retirement plans 1n the
amounts of $97 after-tax established by the Company’s subsidiaries in the third quarter, 2007 have been reduced to $68 Actual results
could differ from these estumates
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The Court of Appeal for Ontario released a decision on November 3, 2011 in regard to the involvement of the participatng accounts of
London Life and Great-West Life in the financing of the acquisihon of LIG 1n 1997 (the “Appeal Decision”)

The Appeal Decision made substantial adjustments to the oniginal trial judgment (the “Tnial Decision™) The impact 1s expected to be
favourable to the Company's overall financial position Any monies to be returned to the parucipating accounts will be dealt with 1n
accordance with the compames’ participating policyholder dividend policies in the ordinary course of business No awards are to be
paid out to individual class members

During the fourth quarter of 2011, 1n response to the Appeal Decision, the Company re-evaluated and reduced the hitigation provision
established 1n the third quarter of 2010, which positively impacted common shareholder net earnings by $223 after-tax

Regardless of the ulimate outcome of thus case, all of the parncipating policy contract terms and conditions will continue to
be honoured

Based on informatian presently known, the Trial Decision, if affirmed on further appeal, 15 not expected to have a matenal adverse
effect on the consolidated financial position of the Company

The Company and a subsichary of the Company have an investment in a USA based private equity parinership wherein a dispute arose
over the terms of the partnership agreement The Company acquired the investment in 2007 for purchase consideration of US$350 The
dispute was resolved on January 10, 2012 and the Company has established a provision for $99 after-tax

Subsequent Event

On January 3, 2012 the plawntiffs filed an apphication in the Supreme Court of Canada for leave to appeal the Appeal Decision

30 Commitments

(a) Syndicated Letters of Credit

Chents residing 1n the United States are required pursuant to their insurance laws to obtain letters of credit 1ssued on LRG's behalf
from approved banks in order to further secure LRG’s obligations under certain reinsurance contracts

LRG has a syndicated letter of credit faciity providing US$650 in letters of credit capacity The faciity was arranged in
2010 for a five year term expiring November 12, 2015 Under the terms and conditions of the facility, collaterahzation may be
required 1f a default under the letter of credit agreement occurs LRG has 1ssued US$479 1n letters of credit under the facility as at
December 31, 2011 (US$$507 at December 31, 2010}

In addition, LRG has other bilateral letter of credit facihties totaling US$18 (US$18 in 2010) LRG has 1ssued US$7 in letters of credit
under these facilities as at December 31, 2011 (US$6 at December 31, 2010)

(b) Other Letters of Credit
Canada Life 1ssues letters of credit 1n the normal course of business Letters of credit in the amount of $1 were outstanding at
December 31, 2011 ($1 at December 31, 2010), none of which have been drawn upcen at that date

(c) Lease Obligations

The Company enters into operating leases for office space and certain equipment used in the normal course of operations
Lease payments are charged to operations over the period of use The future mimimum lease payments in aggregate and by year
are as follows

2017 and
2012 2013 2014 2015 016 thereafter Total

Future lease payments $ 68 52 42 34 24 36 $ 256
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31 Segmented information

The major reportable segments of the Company are the participating and shareholder operaticns The Company operates through
Great-West Life and 1ts wholly owned subsicharies LIG and CLFC Within these segments the major business units are Individual
Insurance, Wealth Management, Group Insurance, Europe/Reinsurance, and Corporate These business units reflect the Company’s
management structure and internal financial reporting Each of these segments operates in the financial services industry and the
revenues from these business units are denived principally from life, health and disability insurance, annuity products, and life,
property and casualty, accident and health and annuity reinsurance Business activities and operations that are not associated with the
specific business untts are attributed to Corporate

{a) Consolidated Net Earnings

2011
Shareholder Participating
Indwidual Wealth Group Europe/ Total
insurance managemenl insurance remnsurance CDI’pDI'atE Total Total <company
Income
Premium income $ 1,128 $ 1,091 $ 451 t 4,718 % 55 $ 11,513 $ 2,660 $ 14,173
Net investment Income
Regular net
nvestment mcome 277 572 291 1,758 (9) 2,889 1,463 4,352
Changes in fair
valye through
profit or loss 831 394 186 1,840 128 3,379 416 3,795
Total net investment
Income 1,108 966 477 3,598 119 6,268 1,879 8,147
Fee and
other income - ans 147 583 39 1,674 (1) 1,673
Total income 2,236 2,962 5,145 8,899 213 19,455 4,538 23,993
Benefits and expenses
Pard or credited to
pohicyholders 1,532 2,001 3,824 7,515 148 15,020 3,942 18,962
Other 330 593 805 548 {244) 2,032 457 2,489
Financing charges - - - 1 68 79 - 79
Amortization of finite
Iife intangible assets 4 11 10 13 15 53 1 54
Earnings before
income taxes 370 357 506 812 226 2,21 138 2,409
Income taxes 61 79 135 122 {75) 322 21 343
Net earnings 309 278 N 690 3 1,949 117 2,066
Net earnings —
participating policyholder - - - - - - "7 117
Net earnings -
common shareholder $ 309 $ 278 $ 371 ] 690 $ 301 $ 1949 % - $ 1,949
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31 Segmented Information {cont'd)

2010
Shareholder Participating
Individua) Wealth Group Europe/ Total
Insurance management Insurance reinsurance Comporate Total Total company
Income
Premium income $ 1,069 $ 1,497 § 4,327 $ 5,141 $ 63 $ 12,097 $ 2453 $ 14,550
Net investment income
Regular net
investment income 224 650 278 1,793 149 3,094 1,417 4,511
Changes In fair
value through
profit or loss 419 248 11 1,464 61 2,303 894 3,197
Total net investment
Income 643 898 389 3,257 210 5,397 2,31 7,708
Fee and
other income - 851 144 549 EA| 1,575 - 1,575
Total income 1,712 3,246 4,860 8,947 304 19,069 4,764 23,833
Benefits and expenses
Paid or credrted to
policyholders 990 2,197 3,538 7,117 180 14,622 4,240 18,862
Other 356 604 164 530 380 2,634 681 3,315
Finanaing charges - - - 7 67 74 - 74
Amoruzation of finite
Iife intangible assets 3 10 10 7 15 45 2 47
Earnings before
income taxes 363 435 548 686 {338) 1,694 (159} 1,535
Income taxes 83 m 157 101 118) 334 (149) 185
Net earnings before non-
controling interests 280 324 39 585 (220) 1,360 (10} 1.350
Non-controlling interests - - - - 7 7 - 7
Net earnings 280 324 3N 585 (227) 1,353 (10} 1,343
Net earmings —
participating policyholder - - - - - - ] (10)
Net earnings —
shareholders 280 324 391 585 (227) 1,353 - 1,353
Preferred share dividends - - - - 7 7 - 7
Net earnings —
common shareholder $ 280 $ 324 $ 39 $ 585 $ (234) $ 1,346 $ - $ 1,346
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(b} Consohdated Total Assets

December 31, 2011

Partlr.lpatmg
Sharehalder account Tetal
Assets
invested assets $ 58,500 $ 31,125 $ 89,625
Goodwill and itangible assets 6,778 - 6,778
Segregated funds for the risk of unitholders 74,223 - 74,223
Other assets 17,692 624 18,316
Total assets $157,193 $ 31,749 % 188,942
December 31, 2010
Participating
Shareholder account Total
Assets
Invested assets $ 53,358 $ 29,619 $ 82,977
Goodwll and ntangible assets 6,782 - 6,782
Segregated funds for the nisk of unitholders 73,638 - 73,638
Other assets 17,777 1,082 18,859
Total assets $ 151,555 $ 30701 $ 182,256
January 1, 2010
Participating
Shareholder account Total
Assets
Invested assets $ 52,034 § 27251 $ 79,545
Goodwnll and intangible assets 6,808 - 6,808
Segregated funds for the nisk of unitholders 67,805 - 67,805
Other assets 19,186 893 20,079
Total assets $ 145833 § 28404 3 174,237
{¢) Geographic Distribution of Total Assets and Income
201 2010
Income Assets Income Assets
Canada $ 14,556 $ 113,906 $ 14,351 $ 111,256
International 9,437 75,036 9,482 71,000
Total assets $ 23,993 $ 188,942 $ 23,833 $ 182,256
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Policyholders and Shareholders,
The Great-West Life Assurance Company

We have audited the accompanying conschdated financial statements of The Great-West Life Assurance Company, which comprise the
consolidated balance sheets as at December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and }anuary 1, 2010, and the consolidated statements of
earnings, comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, and
the notes to the financial statements

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management 1s responsible for the preparation and fair presentanon of these consohdated financial statements 1n accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines 1s necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financtal statements that are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility 1s to express an opinien on these consohidated financial statements based on our audits We conducted our audits in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consohdated financial statements are free from
material misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures te obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 1n the consohdated financial
statements The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of matenal misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due te fraud or error In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consohdated financial statements 1n order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate 1n the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinton on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control An audit also includes evaluating the appropnateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estumates made by management, as well as evaluating the overal! presentation of the consohdated [inancial statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 1n our audits 1s sufficient and approprate to provide a basis for our audit opinion

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, 1n all maternial respects, the financial position of The Great-West
Life Assurance Company as at December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010, and the results of 1ts operations and 1ts cash
flows for the years ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010 1in accordance with International Financial Reporuing Standards

Dedotxe ¢ Douchs LLP

Chartered Accountants

Winnipeg, Manitoba
February 9, 2012

APPOINTED ACTUARY’S REPORT

To the Policyholders, Shareholders and Directors
of The Great-West Life Assurance Company

1 have valued the policy liabiliuies of The Great-West Life Assurance Company for its consehidated balance sheet at December 31, 2011
and their change n 1ts summary of consolidated operations for the year then ended 1n accordance with accepted actuanal practice,
including selection of appropriate assumptions and methods

In my opimion, the amount of policy habiities makes appropriate provision for all policyholder obhgations and the consohdated
financial staterments fairly present the results of the valuation

e B nlr

Tyrone Faulds
Fellow, Canadian Institute of Actuaries

Winmpeg, Manitoba
February 9, 2012
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PARTICIPATING POLICYHOLDER DIVIDEND POLICY

This policyholder dividend pohicy has been established by the Board of Directors and applies to all participating msurance policies
1ssued or assumed by Great-West The Board of Directors may amend this policy from time to time at 1ts discretion The factors most
likely to be considered 1n deciding whether to amend this policy include changes 1in applicable legal or regulatory requirements,
professional gurdelines, industry pracuces or significant business changes

Earnings are generated 1n the partucipating account when the experience in the participating account for factors such as investment
income, asset defaults, mortality, lapses, expenses and taxes s collectively more favourable than the assumptions for these factors used
when establishing the guaranteed values associated with parucipating insurance polictes Great-West may distribute a portion of the
earnings as declared at the discretion of the Board of Directors in accordance with this policy

Participating insurance policies are eligible for pertodic policyholder dividends The amount to be distnibuted from the participating
account as policyholder dividends 1s determined at least annually following a review of the actual and expected experience of the
participating account, taking into account significant changes 1n factors such as investment income, asset defaults, mortality, lapses,
expenses and taxes The amount distributed 1n any year will vary up or down depending on the actual and expected expenence The
amount distnbuted 1s also influenced by considerations such as the need to retain earnings as surplus and reducing short-term
volatility in divadends

The amount distributed as policyholder dividends 1s divided among classes of policies by setting the policyholder dividend scale These
dividend classes are groupings of participating policies with certain product and policy attributes 1n common

Great-West follows the contribution principle when setting the policyholder dividend scale This means the amount distributed as
policyholder dividends 1s divided amoeng dividend classes over the long term 1n proportion to their contribution to earnings A
contribution to earnings will be made from a particitlar dividend class to the extent the expenence for that particular class 1s different
from the assumptions used when establishing the guaranteed vatues for that class When applying the contribution principle, attention
1s paid to achieving reasonable equity between dividend classes and between generations of policies, taking into account practical
considerations and Limits, legal and regulatory requirements, professional guidelines and idustry practices For certain blocks of
policies, the policyholder dividend scale may be determined using methods designed to approximate the contribution to earnings of
those blocks

The policyholder dividends are credited according to the terms of each policy A change made by a policyholder to a policy after 1t 15
1ssued may, in socme cases, result 1n a change to the policy’s dividend class and thus a change to the amount of pohcyholder dividends
credited thereafter

Termination dividends are not payable under any participating pohicies 1ssued by Great-West

Prior to the declaranon of policyholder dividends by the Board, the Appointed Actuary reports to the Board of Directors with his
opinion on the fairness to participating policyholders of the proposed policyholder dividends and on their compliance with this policy,
applicable legislative and regulatory requurements and applicable professional practice standards Pelicy ilustrations will reflect
changes to the policyholder dividend scale as soon as practical

PARTICIPATING ACCOUNT FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

{in Canadizn § millions}

Partiapating

Account Accounting ltem 2010 20m

Canada Opening surplus and accumulated other comprehensive incorme (OCI) $ 442 $ 461
Net earnings (including OCI} before distributions 152 187
Amounts transferred to shareholders under section 461 of the ICA 3 3
Other transfers or accruals under section 462 of the ICA 0 1
Net earnings {including 0C1} before payment of pelicyholder dividends 148 183
Policyholder dividends distnbuted during the year 129 134
Closing surplus and accumulated other comprehensive income (Q€I) 451 510
Total assets at year end 3,583 3,693
Section 461 transfer as a % of total distrbutions 25% 25%
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PARTICIPATING ACCOUNT MANAGEMENT POLICY

This participating account management policy has been established by the Board of Directors and may be amended by the Board from
time to tume at its discretion The factors most likely to be considered in dectding whether to amend this policy include changes 1n
applicable legal or regulatory requirements, professional guidelines, industry practices or significant busimess changes

As required by the Insurance Companies Act, the Company maintans accounts for s participaung insurance policies separately from
those maintained in respect of other policies This facilitates the measurement of the earnings attnibutable to the participating account

The participating account 1s maintained 1n respect of participating life insurance polictes and a small block of participating annuities
that have been 1ssued or assumed by the Company The participating account remains open te new participating policies tssued or
assumed by the Company

Assets of the Company held within 11s general funds are allocated to the participating account and non-parucipating account segments
for the purpose of determining investment inceme for each account Assets are allocated to each segment according to the investment
guidelines established for the segments These guidelines outhne criteria for asset mix, hquidity, currency nsk and interest rate risk
These guidelines are intended to recegnize considerations such as the business cbjectives, hiability characteristics, hquidity
requirements, tax considerations and interest rate risk tolerance of each segment Assets allocated to a segment may from time (o time
be reallocated te another segment within the same account or another account provided the assets exchanged comply with the
investment policy of the respective segments Any such exchanges are effected at fair value

On an annual basis the Board of Directors reviews and approves investment policies and gurdelines which govern investment activities
The investment policies outline a number of principles for mvesting 1n assets, including risk tolerance and the approach to managing
investment risk Investment risk 1s managed through underwnung standards, exposure hmits and specific gundelines governing asset
classes and investment operations The investment pohcies establish hruts for the concentration of assets in single geographic areas,
industries, companies and types of businesses as part of the nsk management process

A large portion of the parucipating account assets are invested i fixed-income assets to support long-term stable growth and the core
guarantees within parucipating policies The Company employs cash-flow-matching techniques so that asset cash flows are sufficient
to meet obligations and to help control exposure to interest rate fluctuations In addition, a portion of the portfolio 15 reinvested each
year so returns refiect the trend 1n interest rates The Company may use derivative products as risk management instruments to hedge
asset and hability positions, or as substitutes for cash instruments within specified guideline hmts

Investment income 1s allocated to the participating account n accordance with the Company’s investment income allocation policy
Generally, investment income results are allocated directly to a segment based on the assets allocated to the segment Each year the
Appointed Actuary reviews the method used for aliocating investment income to the participating account and reports to the Board of
Directors on 1ts fairness and equitableness

Expenses and taxes incurred by the Company are allocated to the parncipating account 1n accordance with the Company’s expense
allocation and tax allecation pohicies

In general, expenses that are exclusively related to parncipating business are allocated directly to the participating account Expenses
related to both participating and non-participating business are allocated based on business statistics when the expenses vary based
on those statistics, based on managers’ estunates supported by ume studies or other assessments, or in proportion to the total
expenses allocated using al! of the methods previously mentioned

From ume to time, matenal non-recurring expenses may be incurred by the Company Management will determine and report to the
Appointed Actuary the allocation of any such expenses, including the basis or Justfication for it The Appointed Actuary’s approval 1s
required for any allocation of such expenses to the parucipaung account

Taxes are allocated to the participating account using the characteristics of the parucipating and non-participating accounts that are
determinative of the relevant tax costs

Each year the Appomted Actuary reviews the method used for allocatung expenses and taxes to the participating account and reports
to the Board of Directors on 1ts fairness and equitableness

The participating account surplus 1s managed 1n accordance with the Company’s capital management policy and participating account
surplus policy and with regard to regulatory requirements The surplus position 15 reviewed annually to assess its conunuing
appropriateness, having regard for the specific circumstances of the participating account Surplus may be used for a number of
purposes including to help ensure the Company can meet 1ts obligations to participating pohcyholders, help ensure financial strength
and stabihty, finance new business growth and acquisiiens which may benefit the participating account, provide for transinons during
penods of major change, and smooth the reflection of experience fluctuanons in dividends, subject to mems such as practical
considerations and limats, legal and regulatory requirements, and industry practices

As permitted by the Insurance Companies Act, the Company may distribute to the shareholder account a percentage of the amount
distributed to policyholders 1n respect of a financial year Prior te any such distribution, the Appointed Actuary will confirm to the
Board of Directors that the proposed distribution 1s permitted under the terms of the Insurance Companies Act The proportion
distributed to the shareholder account will not exceed the prescribed amount as determned under section 461 of the Insurance
Companies Act Any distribution made to the shareholder account wilt be published in the Company’s annual report
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SOURCES OF EARNINGS

The followmng 1s provided in accordance with the OSFI guidehne requuring Sources of Earnings {(SOE} disclosure SOE 1s not an
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) measure There 1s no standard SOE methodology The calculation of SOE 1s
dependent on, and sensiuve to, the methodology, estimates and assumptions used

SOE 1dentifies vanous sources of IFRS net earmings It provides an analysis of the difference between actual net earnings and expected
net earnings based on assumptions made at the beginning of the reporting penod The terminology used 1n the discussion of sources

of earnings 1s described below

Expected Profit on In-Force Business

This component represents the porton of the consohidated net income on business in-force at the start of the reporung period
that was expected to be realized based on the achievement of the best-estimate assumptions ltincludes releases of provisions for
adverse deviations, expected net earmings on deposits, and expected net management fees

Impact of New Business

This component represents the point-of-sale impact on net income of writing new business during the reporuing period This 1s
the difference between the premium received and the sum of the expenses mcurred as a result of the sale and the new habilities
established at the point of sale

Experience Gains and Losses

This component represents gains and losses that are due to differences between the actual expenence during the reporting period
and the best-estimate assumptions at the start of the reporung penod

Management Actions and Changes in Assumptions

This component represents the impact on net income resulting from management actions, changes 1n actuarial assumptions or

methodology, changes 1n margins for adverse deviations, and correction of errors

Other

This component represents the amounis not included in any other line of the sources of earnings

Earnings on Surplus

This component represents the earmings on the Company’s surplus funds

Great West Life's sources of earnings are shown below for 2011 and 2010

Sources of Earnings

{in Canadian $ millions)

Sharehclder net earnings

Group Indnadual Wealth Europe/

For the year ended December 31, 2011 Insurance Insurance  Management  Remsurance  Corporate Total
Expected profit on in-force business $ 498 $ 179 $ 406 $ 442 $ 6 $ 1,531
Impact of new business 1] an a8 9) 0 (8)
Expertence gans and losses (22} 43 9} (74) (37} (99)
Management actions and changes in assumptions 30 195 (38) 276 13 426
Other 0 o] 1] 0 g 0
Earnings on surplus 1] 0 0 177 102 279
Net earnings before tax 506 370 357 812 84 2,129
Taxes (139) {61) (79) {122) 93 {304)
Net earnings before non-controlling interests 37 309 278 690 177 1,825
Non-controlting interests 0 0 0 0 0 0
Net earnings — shareholders 31 309 278 690 177 1,825
Preferred share drvadends 0 0 0 0 1] 0
Net earnings — common shareholder before adjustments 37 309 278 690 177 1,825
Adjustments after tax 0 0 0 0 124 124
Net earnings ~ common shareholder $ 31 $ 309 § 278 $ 690 $ 3 $ 1,949
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SOURCES OF EARNINGS (CONT'D})

Sources of Earnings

(in Canadian $ millions} Shareholder net earmings

Group Indradual Wealth Europe/
For the year ended December 31, 2010 tnsurance Insurance Management  Reinsurance Corporate Total
Expected profit on in-force business $ 495 $ 176§ 365 A I Fii| $ 27§ 1533
Impact of new business 0 (33 38 {14) 0 (9
Experience gamns and losses (22) 6% 5 (61) (47) (S6)
Management actions and changes in assumptions 75 131 27 129 8 390
Other 0 0 4} 0 0 0
Earnings on surplus 0 0 0 162 34 196
Net earnings before tax 548 363 435 686 22 2,054
Taxes (157} (83) (111) {101} 47 (405)
Net earnings before non-centrolling mterests 3 280 324 585 69 1,649
Non-controlling interests 0 0 0 0 7 7
Net earnings — shareholders 39 280 324 585 62 1,642
Preferred share dividends 0 0 0 o} (5] (¥4]
Net earnings — common shareholder before adjustments 39 280 324 585 55 1,635
Adjustments after tax 0 0 0 0 (289} (289)
Net earnings — common shareholder $ 3N $ 280 $ 324 $ 585 § (234 § 1346

Analysis of Results

Expected profit on in-force business 1s the major driver of earmings and accounted for 72% of pre-tax earnings in 2011 The expected
profit on in-force bustness of $1,531 1n 2011 was $2 lower than the 2010 level

New business 1ssued 1n 2011 led to losses of $8 at 1ssue compared to losses of $9 n 2010, largely due to reduced strain on retirement
products 1n Canada and new business i Reinsurance largely offset by increased stramn on insurance sales in Canada

Experience losses 1n 2011 were primarily due to unfavourable expense, morbidity and policyholder behaviour experience in Europe,
policyholder behavior and Group morbidity experience 1n Canada offset by favourabie investment expenience Expenence losses in
2010 were primarily due to unfavourable investment and expense experience in Europe, pohcyhelder behavior and Group morbidity
experience 1n Canada and remnsurance claim provisions Experience losses of ${99) in 2011 were $43 lower than tn 2010 primarily due
to unfavourable morbidity, policyholder behavior and expense experience partially offset by favourable investment experience

In 2011 the Company adopted the revised Actuarial Standards of Practice for subsection 2350 relating to the future mortality
improvement i msurance contract habilities for hfe insurance and annuities The resulting increase to earnings was $331 for hfe
msurance and $3 for annuities

Other management actions and changes 1n assumptions contributed $92 to pre-tax earnings The most significant contributors to
assumption changes and management actions were $141 due to mode! refinements across the Canadian segment, $132 due to updated
expenses and taxes, $86 due to updated morbtdity assumptions, $30 due to updated base hfe insurance mortahty, $9 due to reinsurance
related management actions, $(213) due to increased provisions for pohcyholder behavior in Individual insurance, and $(88) due to
increased provisions for asset hability matching

In 2010 management acttons and changes tn assumptions contributed $390 to pre-tax earnings, including $(3} due to the shareholder
portion of assumption changes in the parucipating lines and $395 due to assumption changes and management actions for insurance
contract liabilities The most significant contributors (o assumption changes and management actions were $168 due to reduced
provisions for asset liabihity management, $111 due to model refinements, $110 due to updated expenses and taxes, $57 improved hfe
mortality, $48 due to improved group msurance morbidity, $(76) due to mcreased provisions for palicyholder behaviour, $(18) due to
strengthened longevity, and $(8) due to strengthened provisions for asset default

Pre-tax earnings on surplus increased by $83 1n 2011 compared to 2010

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE GREAT-WEST LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANY"

Carrying Value Voung Share
Name Principal Office Address {$ eullions) Ownership
GLC Asset Management Group Ltd Winnipeg, Manitoba 29 100 0%
GWL Realty Advisors Inc Winnipeg, Mamtoba - 100 0%
Lendon Insurance Group Inc London, Ontario 3,779 100 0%
Canada Life Financial Corporation Torento, Ontarto 12,728 100 0%

* The table above depicts the matenal and certain other subsidiaries of the Company as at December 31, 2011
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

{in Canadian § mullions except per share amountsy 20mM 2010 *2009 “2008 “2007
At December 31
Total assets under administration $ 203,820 $ 197,290 $ 182,715 $ 173,184 $ 179,756
For the Year Ended December 31
Premiums and deposits
Life insurance, guaranteed annurties and insured health products $ 14173 $ 14,550 $ 15,085 $ 27,425 $ 19,21
Self-funded premium equivalents (ASO contracts) 2,645 2,575 2,499 2410 2,233
Segregated funds deposits
Indvidua! products 7,146 6,643 5,765 6,932 8,544
Group products 3,615 3,744 4,231 3,321 3311
Proprietary mutual funds deposits 7124 616 565 708 835
Total premiums and deposits $ 28,303 $ 28,128 Y 28145 $ 40,79 3 34,144
Condensed Summary of Operations
Income
Premium income $ 14,173 § 14,550 $ 15,085 § 27,425 $ 19221
Net investment income
Regular net investment income 4,352 4,511 4,807 4,802 4,321
Changes n fair value through profit or loss 3,795 3,197 2,637 (4,056) (1,015)
Total net investment income 8,147 1,708 7,444 746 3,306
Fee and other income 1,673 1,575 1,599 1,685 1,705
Total income 23,993 23,833 24128 29,356 24,232
Benefits and expenses
Paid or credited to pohcyholders 18,962 18,862 19,226 24,461 18,982
Other 2,568 3,389 2,800 2,851 2,999
Amortization of finite hfe intangible assets 54 47 38 32 18
Earnings before income taxes 2,409 1,535 2,064 2,512 2,233
Income taxes 343 185 289 543 450
Net earnings befare non-controlling interests 2,066 1,350 1,775 1,969 1,783
Non-centrolling interests - 7 7 7 7
Net earmings 2,066 1,343 1,768 1,962 1,776
Net earnings (loss) — participating account 17 {10) 24 59 128
Net earnings - sharehelders 1,949 1,353 1,744 1,903 1,647
Preferred share dividends - 7 9 ) 11
Net earnings — common shareholder $ 1,949 $ 1,346 $ 1735 5 1,894 $ 1636
Earnings per common share $ 92047 $ 64294 $ 83046 ¥ 90669 $ 78348
Book value per common share $5,627 00 $5.184 00 $5.32000 $ 5,350 00 $ 4,889 00
Dividends to common shareholder - per share $ 54046 § 4544 $ 61378 $ 46583 $ 41226

* The years 2007, 2008 and 2009 are presented on a previous CGAAP basis.
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POLICYHOLDER AND SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Head Office
100 Osbarne Street North, Winmpeg, Manitoba, Canada R3C 1V3

Financial Information

For financial information about Great-West Life, please contact the Semior Vice-President and Chief Financial Officer, Canada at
204-946-8396

For copies of the annual or quarterly reports, please contact the Corporate Secretary’s Office at 204-946-4388 or
ViSit www greatwestlife com

The trademarks contained In this report are owned by The Great-West Life Assurance Company or a member of the Power Financial Carporation group of compantes with the exception of iPhane which 1s a
trademark cf Apple inc The display of Phone in this report does not imply sponsarship, affiliation or endorsement either by The Great West Life Assurance Company or by Apple Inc of the other s products or
services Trademarks that are not owned by The Great West Life Assurance Company are used with permission
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In accordance with
Regulation 32 of the
Overseas Compantes

OS AAO1 .

Canpeiries Hese

COMPANIES HUUSE
FOI 1druiel nnuiniauvi g, picass

refer to our guidance at
www companteshouse gov uk

\
Regulations 2003 Statement of details of parent law and other
information for an overseas company
& What this form 1s for What this form is NOT for
You may use this form to You cannot use this form to register
accompany your accounts an alteration of manner of compliance
disclosed under parent law with accounting requirements
Part 1 Corporate company nhame

Corporate name of
overseas company @

| The Great-West Life Assurance Company

If the company has already been registered in the UK, please enter the
establishment number below

UK establishment
number &

Part 2

[efrToTaTalala ]

Statement of details of parent law and other
information for an overseas company

< Filling in this form
Please complete in typescript or in
bold black capitals

All fields are mandatory unless
specified or indicated by *

©This 15 the name of the company in
its home state

O This should only be completed if
the company has already been
registered in the UK

Legislation

Please give the legislation under which the accounts have been prepared and,
if applicable, the legislation under which the accounts have been audited

@ This means the relevant rules or
legislation which regulates the
preparation and, if applicable, the
audit of accounts.

Legislatton © f Insurance Companies Act (Canada)
Accounting principles
Accounts Have the accounts been prepared in accordance with a set of generally accepted | @ Please insert the name of the

accounting principles?
Please tick the appropriate box
[] No GotoSection A3

Yes Please enter the name of the organisation or other
body which 1ssued those principles below, and then go to Section A3

Name of organisation
or body ©

I Accounting Standards Board - Canadian GAAP

appropnate accounting organisation

or body

Accounts

Accounts

Have the accounts been audited? Please tick the appropriate box
[(] No Go to Section A5
Yes Go to Section A4

BIS

Innovation & Skills

Department for Business

CHFPOOO
05/10 Version 4 0




0S AAO1

Statement of details of parent iaw and other mnformation for an overseas company

Audited accounts
Audited accounts Have the accounts been audited in accordance with a set of generaily accepted  |@ Please insert the name of the
audmng standards? appropriate accounting

organisation or body
Please tick the appropriate box

[J No Goto Part 3 ‘Signature’

Yes Please enter the name of the arganisation or other body which issued
those standards below, and then go to Part 3 ‘Signature’

Name of organisation
or body ©

Unaudited accounts

Unaudited accounts Is the company requered to have its accounts audrted?
Please tick the appropnate box
] wo.
1 Yes

’ Auditing Standards Committee

Part 3 Signature

| I am signing this form on behalf of the overseas company

Signature Swgnature {
X SRl X

This form may be signed by
Birecter-Seeretary. Permanent representative
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Statement of details of parent law and other information for an overseas company

B Presenter information

n Important information

You do not have to give any contact information, but if
you do 1t will help Companies House If there 1s a query
on the form The contact information you give will be
wisible to searchers of the public record

Contact name

Karina Morns

Company name

Canada Life Limited

ks Canada Life Place

High Street

| PusloWl Dotters Bar
ContRes™  ertfordshire

efnls [slo Al

England

l Postcode

Counzry

|Dx

| ™ 01707 422736

Checklist

We may return forms completed incorrectly or
with information missing

Please make sure you have remembered the

following

O The company name and, if appropnate, the
registered number, match the information held on
the public Register

O You have completed all sections of the form,
if appropriate

O You have signed the form

Please note that all this information will appear
on the public record

E Where to send

You may return this form to any Companies
House address

England and Wales

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House,
Crown Way, Cardiff Wales, CF14 3UZ

DX 33050 Cardiff

Scotland'

The Registrar of Compamies, Companies House,
Fourth floor, Edinburgh Quay 2,

139 Fountainbridge, Edinburgh, Scotland, EH3 9FF
DX ED235 Edinburgh 1

or LP - 4 Edinburgh 2 (Legal Post)

Northern Ireland-

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House,
Second Floor, The Linenhall, 32-38 Linenhall Street,
Belfast, Northern Ireland, BT2 8BG

DX 481 N R Belfast 1

Further information

For further information, please see the guidance notes
on the website at www companieshouse gov uk
or email enguines@companieshouse gov uk

This form is available in an
alternative format. Please visit the
forms page on the website at
www.companieshouse.gov.uk

This has been provided free of charge by Companies House
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